
Adult Commissioning Committee  
 

Dear Member, 
 

You are invited to attend the meeting of the Adult Commissioning Committee to be 
held as follows for the transaction of the business indicated. 
David Wilcock 

Monitoring Officer 

 
DATE: Wednesday, 8 September 2021 

 
TIME:  2.00 pm 

 
VENUE: Microsoft Teams Meeting 

 
 

AGENDA 

 
1   Apologies for Absence  

 

 

2   Declarations of Interest  

 

 

3   Draft Minutes of the Meeting Held on 14th July 2021  

 
(Pages 1 - 6) 

 ITEMS FOR DECISION  

 

 

4   Age Well Specification - Jess Ta'ati  

 

(Pages 7 - 52) 

5   CURE Tobacco Addiction Service - Samantha Mansfield  

 
(Pages 53 - 90) 

6   Aspire (CIC) Contract - VAT Impact and Options - Judd Skelton  

 
(Pages 91 - 100) 

 ITEMS FOR ASSURANCE  

 

 

7   Finance Report - David Warhurst  

 

(Pages 101 - 108) 

 ITEMS FOR INFORMATION  

 

 

8   Adult Commissioning Report - Harry Golby/Judd Skelton  

 
(Pages 109 - 126) 

9   Any Other Business  

 

 

10   Dates of Future Meetings  
 

 Wednesday 13 October at 14:00;  

 Wednesday 10 November at 14:00;  

 Wednesday 12 January 2022 at 14:00;  

 Tuesday 01 February 2022 at 14:00;  

 Wednesday 09 March 2022 at 14:00. 

 

 

Public Document Pack



 

 
Contact Officer:   

Carol Eddleston E-Mail: carol.eddleston@salford.gov.uk 



 

Minutes of the Meeting of the Adults’ Commissioning 

Committee Held via MS Teams on Wednesday 7th July 2021 

Meeting started at 14:01 

Meeting ended at 15:02 

 

Present 

Dr David McKelvey (DMcK)  Neighbourhood Lead - CCG 

Cllr John Merry (JM) Deputy City Mayor and Lead Member for Adult Social 

Care 

Dr Tom Regan (TR)   Clinical Director for Commissioning - CCG  

Dr Jeremy Tankel (JT)   Medical Director - CCG – Chair 

Mr David Warhurst (DW)   Chief Finance Officer - CCG 

 

The following joined at the close of an earlier meeting: 

Cllr Tracy Kelly (TK) Statutory Deputy City Mayor and Lead Member for 

Housing & Neighbourhoods - CCG 
Ms Gillian Mclauchlan   Deputy Director of Public Health – CCG/SCC 

In Attendance 

Mr Harry Golby (HG)   Deputy Director of Commissioning – CCG 

Mr Chris Hesketh (CH)  Head of Financial Management - SCC 

Dr Girish Patel    PCNS/SPCT 

Ms Emma Reid (ER) Joint Head of Planning and Performance CCG/SCC 

Mr Judd Skelton (JS) Assistant Director Integrated Commissioning – 

CCG/SCC 

Ms Carol Eddleston (CAE) Democratic Services – SCC (minutes) 

 
Apologies for Absence 

Dr Muna Abdel Aziz   Director of Public Health – CCG/SCC 

Cllr Damian Bailey Executive Support Member for Social Care & Mental 

Health 

Mr Steve Dixon (SD)   Chief Accountable Officer – CCG 

Mr David Flinn (DF)   Neighbourhood Lead - CCG 

Mrs Joanne Hardman (JH) Chief Finance Officer - SCC 

Cllr Bill Hinds (BH)  Lead Member for Finance & Support Services – SCC 

Ms Alison Paige (AP) Salford CVS 

Mrs Karen Proctor (KP)  Director of Commissioning - CCG 

Mrs Charlotte Ramsden (CR)  Strategic Director People – SCC 

Mr Paul Walsh (PW) Assistant Director, Integrated Commissioning –    

CCG/SCC 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



1. Welcome and Introductions 

 

JM welcomed everybody to the meeting and explained that the meeting was inquorate for 

decision making purposes as, due to unfortunate and unavoidable circumstances, only one 

elected member was able to attend for the entire duration of the meeting. [Three voting 
members are required from each of CCG and SCC for decision making purposes]. 

For the purposes of agenda item 4 Draft Annual Plan for Integrated Commissioning 2021/22 

it was agreed that, subject to the in principle agreement of those members present, voting 

Salford City Council members not present would be asked to confirm their agreement by 
email after the meeting. 

2. Apologies for Absence 

The apologies above were noted. 

3. Declarations of Interest 

There were no declarations of interest in any of the items on the agenda. 

4. Draft Integrated Commissioning Plan for 2021/22 

ER presented the draft Integrated Commissioning Plan for 2021/22 which outlined the high 

level priorities for each of the six strategic programme areas, including Adult Services, from 

1st April 2021 until 31st March 2022 to ensure the CCG and City Council played a leading 

role in delivering the Salford Locality Plan for local people. 

It was not anticipated that there would be any significant changes to this plan but, in this time 

of ongoing uncertainty, this annual plan, even more than in other years, would remain a 

dynamic document which would be updated as required throughout the year. 

As in previous years, the Health and Care Commissioning Board had been asked to 

delegate approval of the Adults Services Plan to the Adults Commissioning Committee. 

Observations on the report and appendix included: 

 A total of 102 out of 193 actions reported in the 2020/21 plan had been marked for 

completion by 31/03/21 which was a considerable achievement; 

 The plan was ambitious and impressive but many of the actions were process based 

rather than outcome based. Every effort was made to make the actions SMART 

wherever possible but it was difficult to get the balance right. Further consideration of 

how they might be made SMARTer would be given in the next round of planning. 

 The amount of work undertaken to get the plan to this stage was significant, with much 

discussion to get agreement to the actions and timescales.  

 The plan did indeed need to be dynamic and thankfully Salford was very adept at 

adapting when necessary. 

The ACC members present agreed that, subject to their in principle agreement, voting 

Salford City Council members not present would be asked to confirm their agreement 

to the actions outlined in the Adult Services section of Appendix 1 by email after the 

meeting. 

Page 2



5. Finance Report 

DW presented the report which provided an overview of the opening budgets for 2021/22, 

along with an update relating to the year to date financial performance and forecast and 
associated risks to the financial plan of the Adults Integrated Fund for 2021/22. 

In 2020/21 the Adults integrated fund had a projected overspend against available funding of 

£2m, which had increased by £1.3m, consequently the financial overspend for 2021/22 was 

now £3.3m. The increased overspend was aligned with the committee’s aspirations, 

including funding of £9.8m for system priorities including a continued move towards the Real 

Living Wage (RLW) and achievement of key standards such as Mental Health Investment 
Standard (MHIS). 

Based on a number of assumptions used in constructing the expenditure budget and the 

available funding, to achieve financial balance within Adults’ a savings target of £3.3m would 

need to be delivered recurrently. Overall, the integrated fund needed to achieve a saving of 

£6.2m o be in balance. The Health Care Commissioning Board did approve an opening 
financial risk of £6.2m, but the system should aspire to reduce this deficit. 

Although the financial plan was presented on a full year basis, the NHS funding regime for 

months 7 to 12 was as yet not known and therefore remained a risk. The picture would be 

much clearer by the time of the September meeting. It was increasingly likely that CCG 

allocations would be reduced in the second half of the year which would consequently 

require some difficult decisions to be made, including additional savings to be identified or 
investments reprioritised. 

One area of particular concern was client income. The client income target had been set at 

where it would have been pre-COVID but there were early indications that it could be as 

much as £2m under achieved. It was not clear if this was due to a backlog of claims or if it 

was a genuine underachievement and it was intended to do a deep dive before the next 
meeting. 

Salford had done extremely well in managing national funding in 2020/21 and, with this in 

mind, a bi-weekly meeting was going to be arranged with ASC staff and the three Chief 
Finance Officers to work through how best to do the same in 2021/22. 

It was very early to be forecasting to the end of the year but, at this stage, there were 

indications of a forecast underspend of around £900k and, whilst this might not come to 

fruition, it felt like the budget could be delivered comfortably at the end of the year. Given the 

forthcoming ICS it was important that Salford put itself in the strongest financial position that 
it could. 

DW responded to questions and observations as follows: 

 Adult Social Care showed an overspend of £6m at the beginning of 2020/21, £3m of 

which was funded through the Council and the CCG, of the remaining £3m SRFT agreed 

to fund half and commissioners the other half, meaning that the £6m was negated last 

year. 

 This year there was a risk of about £1m in ASC, split again between SRFT and 

commissioners. 

Page 3



 Nationally commissioned independent sector (IS) – the money that was removed from 

Salford baseline in the last financial year had now been given back to Salford. Any 

overspend on the IS contracts in H1 would be mitigated by the national Elective 

Recovery Fund. 

 Given budgetary pressures, the system could not afford overspends and needed to be 

well sighted on risks.  The system had reconvened the savings programme, which was 

meeting monthly, focussing on cost containment as well as savings. 

 It was understood that the funding position in relation to the second half of the year may 

be known towards the end of September but the money would come into at GM level and 

then GM would have to work out which CCGs and which providers received how much. It 

was expected that that would take a minimum of two to three weeks. 

 £2m relating to the CCG’s historic underspend were currently held by GM but DW 

expressed his expectation that GM should honour previous agreements and return this 

funding to Salford. Additionally, around £9m of the CCG’s historic surplus was currently 

being held nationally and recovery of this was more challenging. Across the whole of the 

North West there was around £78m retained nationally. DW worried that this might not 

be returned before the demise of the CCGs and, if not, Salford would have to exert its 

influence on the ICS to ensure it was returned. Salford had made a commitment to help 

the system, both locally and nationally, on the premise that it would come back. 

 It was anticipated that the nationally held surpluses would be reviewed in the second half 

of the financial year. With this in mind, it would be better to wait until confirmation had 

been received one way or another before starting any lobbying. 

 When the previous NHS reorganisation occurred, the CCG did retain the previous PCTs 

historic underspends, so there was precedent for the money being retained in localities – 

but this should not be seen as a guarantee. 

 If Salford did not get its monies back in 2021/22 it needed to seek a commitment that it 
would be returned in the fullness of time. 

The Adults Commissioning Committee noted the Adults’ integrated fund plan for 

2021/22; the financial position for 2021/22, the risks to the Adults’ integrated fund for 

2021/22 and the savings programme for 2021/22 to deliver a balanced plan.  

 

6. Adult Commissioning Report 

HG and JS presented the report which provided an overview on the following: 

 Additional capacity in Community Mental Health Teams  –  

Recurrent funding of £332k had been approved by this committee in November 2020 to help 

bolster and sustain Community Health Teams (CMHT) to meet changing and increased 

need and to support new and integrated models of primary and community mental health 

care by 2023/24. Following planning discussions with GMMH a staffing model had now been 

proposed. Two of these posts were initially funded by the IBCF but that funding had now 
ended, hence the ask to the committee in November of last year.  

There had been an increase of presentations of dual diagnosis from people with substance 

misuse and mental health needs. It had also been noted that a theme was emerging 

regarding the number of Safeguarding Adult Reviews which centred around someone with 

co-occurring substance misuse and mental health needs. There had also been an increase 

in the number of people presenting with eating disorders so the additional investment agreed 
by this committee in February 2020 had been very timely. 

Page 4



Dual diagnosis practitioners would be located in CMHTs and Salford could now maximise 

the benefits of having the same provider. A VCSE organisation was working with Living Well 
to provide a service to individuals who did not meet the criteria for CMHT 

 Urology Services Reconfiguration Delivery Model –  

Colleagues from Bury, Oldham, Rochdale and Salford CCGs and the Northern Care Alliance 

had been working jointly on developing a pan-locality delivery model to improve Urology 

services in response to significant service resilience issues and unwarranted variation in 
services. 

 Review of Greater Manchester Assisted Conception and Fertility Services –  

These services were commissioned in partnership with other CCGs across GM. Each CCG 

had a policy based on a GM framework but the pathways and the number of cycles offered 

varied among CCGs. Officers from the Finance, Service Improvement and Engagement 

teams of Salford CCG were involved in the review and the public engagement phase was 

now underway. 

 Approval of the Emergency Primary Integrated Care (EPiC 24) Business Case –  

The business case had been approved by Primary Care Commissioning Committee in May 

for up to two years. As previously reported to Adults Commissioning Committee, EPiC 24 

was an integrated model which aligned urgent and unscheduled care services via a digital 

hub to ensure that the people of Salford benefited directly, by receiving the most appropriate 
support for their clinical needs, wherever possible in a community setting. 

 Listening Lounge –  

This was intended, as an alternative to A&E, as a robust urgent care response for people 

who were in the community and in crisis. The model being developed would be based at 

Hollybank which was situated one mile from Salford Royal hospital on a main road and 

easily accessible by public transport. 

Listening Lounge referral – the starting point for this was via A&E so that commissioners 

could understand flow and demand, and ensure that staffing levels were adequate. In the 

longer term discussions would be held with GMMH about when access might be extended 
via NWAS and the Crisis Line which general practice could direct people to.  

The Adults Commissioning Committee noted the report and commended the progress 
and developments outlined. 

 

7. Any Other Business 

There were no items of any other business. 

 

8. Dates of Future Meetings 

 Wednesday 08 September at 14:00;  

 Wednesday 13 October at 14:00;  

 Wednesday 10 November at 14:00;  

 Wednesday 12 January 2022 at 14:00;  

 Tuesday 01 February 2022 at 14:00;  

 Wednesday 09 March 2022 at 14:00. 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



 
NAME OF MEETING Adult Commissioning Committee 
DATE OF MEETING 08th September 2021 

AGENDA ITEM NO 4: AGE WELL SPECIFICATION 
 
Item for: Decision and Information  

 

Report of: Integrated Commissioning and Public Health 

Date of Paper: 27th August 2021 

In case of query, please 
contact: 

Jessica Ta’ati 
Integrated Commissioning Manager 

Jessica.taati@salford.gov.uk 
 
Sam Mansfield 

Public Health Commissioning Manager 
Samantha.mansfield@salford.gov.uk  

Strategic Priorities:  
(Please tick as appropriate) 

Quality, Safety, Innovation and Research  

Adult Services  

Children’s and Maternity Services  

All Age Mental Health  

Primary Care  

Enabling Transformation  
Mayoral Priorities: 
(Please tick as appropriate) 

Tackling poverty and inequality  

Reducing Health Inequalities  

Skills and Education (A Learning City)  

Affordable Housing  

Transport and Digital Connectivity  

Tackling the Climate Change Emergency  

Vibrant Place and Spaces  

Creating an Economy for All  

Page 7

Agenda Item 4

mailto:Jessica.taati@salford.gov.uk
mailto:Samantha.mansfield@salford.gov.uk
https://www.salford.gov.uk/cmpriorities


 
Purpose of Paper:                                    

 
 

 Provide an overview of the Age Well model for approval 

 Provide the Age Well specifications for review, comment and approval 

 Provide the finances associated with the Age Well commission for 
approval 

 Provide confirmation on the approval of a six-month extension, for the 

relevant contracts in scope and the costs associated 

 Confirmation on Lead Member approval to novate the relevant contracts in 

scope from Salford CCG to Salford Council.  

 
Further information 

How will this benefit the health and 
wellbeing of Salford residents, or the CCG 
or City Council? 

It will provide a tiered, structured service 

model for older people which will give 
people the right health and wellbeing 

support at the right time. 

How does this paper address health 
inequalities and promote inclusion? 

Community Impact Assessment (CIA) for 

the tender process to be completed 
before 1st October 2021 

What risks may arise as a result of this 
paper and how will they be mitigated? 

N/A – the request is to be considered a 
low risk 

Does this address any existing high risks 
facing the organisation and how does it 
reduce them? 

N/A 

Are there any possible conflicts of interest 
associated with this paper? 

N/A 

Will any current services or roles be affected 
by issues within this paper and what are 

they? 

All existing provision will end in advance 

of new services commencing. All existing 
providers have been informed of the 

commissioning intentions. Roles within 
the existing service may be affected.  

Note: Where appropriate, please ensure detail is provided. 

 

Page 8



 
Document Development 

Has there been Public Engagement? Engagement with service users has taken 
place as part of the wider service review. 

Has there been Clinical Engagement? N/A 

Has the impact on Salford socially, 

economically and environmentally been 
considered? 

Yes, particularly in the context of COVID-
19 recovery and on maximising the 

potential for older people to contribute to 
these factors through the commission. 

Has there been an analysis of any impacts 

on equality? 

Community Impact Assessment (CIA) for 
the tender process to be completed 

before 1st October 2021 

Has legal advice been obtained? Yes 

Has this been to any groups or committees 
for engagement, comments, or approval?  

The specifications have been to Adults 
Advisory Board 

 

Finances have been discussed at Service 
and Finance Group 

 

Detail on the model, novation and 
finances has been presented at Decision 

Management Group. 

 

Detail on the model, novation and 
finances has been shared with the 
Corporate Management Team. 

 

Detail on the model and the novation has 

been discussed at Lead Member Briefing 

 
 

Note: Where relevant, please provide detail and ensure that it is clear how and when particular stakeholders 
were involved in this work, that there is clarity of what the key message/decision was, and whether amendments 
were requested about any part of the work. 

 
Age Well Commission 

 

1.  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 

Page 9



 
 

There are a number of services that are commissioned between Salford City Council 
(SCC) and Salford Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) to support older adults 

residing across the city. 
 
Due to the nature of these contract being similar and the need for future provision 

to mirror the existing visions for older adults across Salford, Integrated 
Commissioning and Public Health will undertake a joint tendering exercise to 

establish an Age Well offer for the city. This new model will commence from 1st 
October 2022. 
 

This paper will provide an overview of the new model to be commissioned including 
the expected demand associated and the financial impact. 

 

 
 
 

2.  BACKGROUND 

 
 
2.1. There are five contracts in scope, which are currently delivering provision 

across Salford for older adults; they are as follows: 
 

Age UK Salford 
 

1. Hospital Aftercare 

2. Social Rehabilitation  
3. Dementia Support 

 
Inspiring Communities Together, Salford CVS, Age UK Salford 

 

1. Community Assets (Age Friendly Salford) 
2. Tech & Tea (Age Friendly Salford) 

 
Public Health and Integrated Commissioning have concluded a review of 
existing provision. The findings of this review have been used to reshape the 

offer for the older population in Salford. 
 

With the nature and focus of the above contracts being similar, Salford’s Public 
Health Team and the Integrated Commissioning team will jointly undertake a 
procurement exercise to commission an Age Well service offer to commence 

in 2022. The proposed contract will be awarded for a duration of five years. 
 
 

3.  MODEL 

 

Page 10



 
 
3.1 The Age Well service will be firmly embedded in the communities and 

neighbourhoods of Salford; around the places where older people live their 

lives. The service will be democratic and cooperative, enabling productive 

stakeholder involvement in both delivery and operation. It will provide 

additionality to those key system structures in neighbourhoods including 

primary care, social care, health improvement, community physical and mental 

health and the VCSE/independent sector.  It will have a strong focus on 

addressing inequalities; driving quality and innovation. 

The tender will be separated into two lots: 

Lot 1. Population wide provision for older adults in Salford 

Lot 2. Prevention and Early Intervention for older adults in Salford 

The detail supplied in the specification for Lot 1 will deliver universal provision, 

with some aspects edging into the provision as outlined in the Prevention and 

Early Intervention service specification.  

The detail supplied in the Prevention and Early Intervention service 

specification will deliver work to prevent, reduce, delay support for older adults 

and carers that may be supplied under the Care Act 2014, supporting and 

promoting independence and wellbeing. 

The proposed service model has been informed by World Health Organisation 

(WHO) Age Friendly Cities: A guide and Age Friendly Salford 2019 both of 

which directly link to Salford’s Great Eight priorities 

3.2 The contract held with the winning provider(s) will include detail on the 

employment standards as set out in the Market Shaping Strategy including a 

requirement for providers to meet the Real Living Wage for the staff they 

employ. 

 
3.3 Work has begun with Salford City Council Procurement to gather the options 

associated with the tendering methods best suited to the older population within 
Salford and the provider market. A tender with lots is being proposed. 

 
 

4.  SERVICE SPECIFICATIONS 

 

 

4.1  Salford has been using the World Health Organisation (WHO) Age Friendly 
Model from 2014; with commitment from the City Mayor to create an older 

people-led plan for change, considering all the different aspects that affect our 
lives with age friendly places - our streets, neighbourhoods and communities.  

  

Page 11



 
In Salford, WHO’s model has brought together some ideas and projects which 
were important to older people’s health and wellbeing.  

 
Alongside existing models and extensive work undertaken across Salford in 

more recent years to understand future need, Salford will adopt a shared overall 

concept for this service: 

‘providing local people with more opportunities to connect and stay well 

within their communities and join the wider community of Salford’ 

 The visions as set out in Age Friendly Salford 2019 are as follows: 

 
Vision 1 

Older people are able to feel safe and travel to places which help keep them 
healthy and engaged 

Vision 2 

Older people are able to find information and services to keep them healthy and 
engaged in activities 

Vision 3 

Older people feel respected and included in neighborhood activities to keep 
them healthy and engaged 

Vision 4 

Older people are able to find opportunities for paid and unpaid work as well as 

ensure their voice is heard to keep them healthy and engaged 

4.2 Lot 1 – Population Health  

This specification will provide a service offer which supports older people to live 

healthy and active lives. The service offer will reduce the risk of poor health and 
delay the onset, progression and impact of disease and disability. 

Vison 1 

The service will be a strong influencer across public, private and voluntary & 
community sector provision that impacts older people. As a system influencer, 

the service will lobby and advocate on behalf of older people in Salford, 
ensuring their voice is represented and heard in key decision making forums. 

This includes influencing strategic planning on the social determinants of 
health, including housing, transport, the environment, and where appropriate, 
employment. 

 Vision 2  

The service will provide a universal offer to all older people who live in Salford. 

The service will play a key role in joining services together around the needs of 
the older person and will, where needed, advocate on behalf of older people. 

Page 12



 
The service will assist people to regain or maintain optimum quality of life 
following a life changing experience such as bereavement, a fall or after a 

decline in health by offering direct support or signposting to a more appropriate 
agency or organisation.  

The service will work with the voluntary, community and social enterprise sector 

to identify gaps in the offer at neighbourhood level. 

The service will provide infrastructure support to develop volunteer led, 

community groups that meet the needs of the local community. 

The service will upskill the wider workforce on factors that affect older people 
and encourage all to be allies and challenge stereotypes. 

Vision 3  

The service will work across the 8 Local Authority identified neighbourhoods of 

Salford to provide universal support for older people. The service offer will 
include the following, as a minimum; 

 An offer to increase access to, and enhance the digital skills of, older people 

 A service to combat loneliness and reduce social isolation 

 Raise the important of nutrition and hydration in later life  

 Dementia awareness 

 Support the Ageing in Place agenda 

 Work with local businesses to increase age friendly practices 

The service will work with individuals to provide a social participation offer, 
allowing the opportunity to promote a healthy lifestyle that positively impacts 

the individuals physical, mental and emotional health. 

Vision 4  

The service will recruit and manage a pool of volunteers across a broad age 
range and covering a diverse range of roles. 

The service will support people to be in good quality, fulfilling work, for as long 

as possible, is important for their financial security in later life 

4.3 Lot 2 – Early Intervention 
 

The service will take a collaborative approach to working with multi agency 
partners, ensuring a whole system approach is taken, to get the best outcomes 

for older people and carers. A one stop service will be developed for Salford’s 
older population that follows national guidance and best practice, whilst meeting 
the specific and unique needs of individuals and their caring networks. 

 
This lot will support the last three visions as set out in Age Friendly Salford 

2019. 
 

Vision 2  

 

Page 13



 
Community Health and Support Services 

The service will be firmly based in the community and be part of an integrated 

service model and will receive support from professionals within primary care, 
social care and community physical and mental health services. 

 

The service will work with primary care and community health services to 
ensure that individual’s needs are met in the community, reducing unplanned 

access to hospital services. 
 
The service will work with social care partners to maximise independence and 

wellbeing amongst older people, reducing the reliance on more costly regulated 
personal care services through a Community-Led Support model.   

 
The service will provide support, information and advice on the transition into 
residential care or care homes.  

 
The service will assist people to regain or maintain optimum quality of life 

following a life changing experience such as bereavement, a fall or after a 
decline in health  

The service will offer loss and/or bereavement support or signposting to an 
alternative agency or organisation where appropriate. 

 
Support for Older People Returning Home from Hospital 

The service will provide support and advice to older people as they are returning 

home from hospital, it will work alongside other community based services to 
ensure there is a holistic response as people return home. The service will also 
support the drive to reduce readmission rates by providing the appropriate 

support in the community. 
 

One Stop Shop for Older Adults     

The service will be the first stop for all older adults providing a strengths-based 
assessment to establish the support requirement of the individual. Onward 

referrals may be required to Adult Social Care should care needs, outside the 
scope of this service, be identified. 

Support for Carers 

Salford has an existing carers contract with Gaddum, the service will be 

expected to enhance the support for carers of older people, living in Salford, by 
adding value to the current arrangements in place with Gaddum.  

 
Increased Support for People at Home 

The service will provide a short-term support (not including regulated personal 

care) pending the full establishment and commencement of a social care 
package, to facilitate discharge from hospital, if it is appropriate to do so. 

 

Page 14



 
Vision 3 

 
Respect and Social Inclusion 

The service will support to facilitate social relationships enabling older 
people to come together with other people of all ages in their community. 

 
Social Participation  

The service will work with individuals to provide a social participation offer with 
range, allowing the opportunity to promote a healthy lifestyle that positively 
impacts the individuals physical, mental and emotional health. 

 
Clear Pathways to Support People with Low Level Needs 

The service will create a clear pathway for individuals utilising the service 
by providing one access point for support 
 
Pop-up Community Hubs 

The service will work across all community and neighbourhoods of Salford to 

provide a peer and personalised support for older people. 
 
To provide outcome focussed and needs-led community outreach services to 

meet the requirements of older people who have a social care need as identified 
through a strengths-based assessment undertaken by the service. 

Vision 4 
 

Civic Participation and Employment 

The service will work with local employers and individuals supporting older 
adults to be in good quality, fulfilling work, for as long as possible to maintain 

financial security in later life. 
 
 
 

5.  DATA ASSUMPTIONS  

 

 
5.1 Based on existing provision, the minimum annual indicative numbers 

expected into the new Age Well service from the 1st October 2022 will 

be: 
 
Public Health Data 2019/20 (Lot 1) 

 
Service Name Minimum number of new 

people accessing the service 
(per annum) 

Loneliness and isolation 300 
Digital skills 500 

Health and wellbeing 500 

Page 15



 
Nutrition and hydration 100 (staff and volunteers) 

Volunteers recruited 40 
Total 1,440 

 
 
Age UK Data 2018/19 (Lot 2) 

 
Service Name Number of new 

referrals 
Number of repeat referrals 
or number carried over  

Total 

Hospital 
Aftercare 

2773 N/A 2773 

Social 
Rehabilitation 

117 102 219 

Dementia 
Support 

113 261 374 

Total 3,003 363 3,366 

 
 
 

6.  EXTENSION  

 
 

6.1 Integrated Commissioning and Public Health have requested a six-month 

extension on each contract referred to in section 2.1 of this paper. Each contract 
has been running for a number of years with the option to extend being 

exercised brining the end date of each contract to 31st March 2022. With a 
further six month extension, the end date of each contract referred to in section 
2.1 will be 30th September 2022 allowing the new Age Well service contracts to 

commence on 1st October 2022. 
 

The main factor resulting in the request to extend the relevant contracts by a 
further six months is in relation to the COVID-19 pandemic and the knock-on 
effect the additional waves and the priorities associated with the vaccination 

programme has had on the capacity to finalise work relating to the development 
of the new service model thus delaying the procurement timeline. 

 
The changing response to COVID-19 does need to be considered. The Cabinet 
Office has released ‘Procurement Policy Note 01/20: Responding to COVID-

19’, it sets out guidance on the public procurement regulations and responding 
to the current COVID-19 outbreak. This covers extending or modifying a 

contract during its term (regulation 72(1)).  
 
The request to extend was approved at Service and Finance on the 3rd August 

2021. 
 

 The new procurement timeline is as follows: 
 

Page 16

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/873521/PPN_01-20_-_Responding_to_COVID19.v5__1_.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/873521/PPN_01-20_-_Responding_to_COVID19.v5__1_.pdf


 

 
 

The cost associated with a six month extension, from 1st April 2022 to 30 th 
September 2022 will be as follows: 
 

Existing Contracts  Provider Commissioner 
Contract Amount per 
Year 

INTEGRATED COMMISSIONING 

Hospital Aftercare Age UK Salford  CCG £140,684.50 

Dementia Support Age UK Salford  CCG £107,914.50 

Social Rehabilitation Age UK Salford  CCG £30,626.50 

Project

Document

Date

Stage Start Date(s)/time End Date(s)/time Days Lead

SLT/LM/CCG Reporting/Approvals Tuesday 06 July 2021 Wednesday 18 August 2021 43 Procurement 

Novation of Contracts Tuesday 06 July 2021 Wednesday 18 August 2021 43

Forward Plan/Forward Look Monday 19 July 2021 Wednesday 18 August 2021 30 Procurement 

PB Wednesday 18 August 2021 Wednesday 01 September 2021 14 Procurement 

Provider Event Wednesday 01 September 2021 Tuesday 30 November 2021 90 Procurement 

Tender Prep Tuesday 06 July 2021 Wednesday 01 December 2021 148 Procurement 

Issue of Invitation to Tender Wednesday 01 December 2021 Thursday 02 December 2021 1 Procurement 

Submission of Tenders Thursday 02 December 2021 Tuesday 11 January 2022 40 Procurement 

Evaluation of Tenders Stage 1 (PQQ) Tuesday 11 January 2022 Tuesday 18 January 2022 7 Technical Lead and procurement

Evaluation of Tenders Stage 2 (ITT) Tuesday 18 January 2022 Tuesday 01 February 2022 14 Technical Lead and procurement

Evaluation of Tenders Stage 3 

(Presentation)
Tuesday 01 February 2022 Tuesday 15 February 2022 14 Technical Lead and procurement

Evaluation of Tenders Stage 4 (Social 

Value)
Tuesday 15 February 2022 Tuesday 01 March 2022 14 Technical Lead and procurement

Report drafting Tuesday 01 March 2022 Tuesday 15 March 2022 14 Commissioning

Approvals (SLT/LM/CCG) Tuesday 15 March 2022 Wednesday 06 April 2022 22 Technical lead and procurement

PB Wednesday 06 April 2022 Wednesday 20 April 2022 14

Notification of result of evaluation and 

alcatel starts/ends
Wednesday 20 April 2022 Tuesday 03 May 2022 13 Commission

Expected date of award of Contract Tuesday 03 May 2022 Wednesday 04 May 2022 1 Procurement 

TUPE/Staff 

Consultation/Implementation/Transition/Re

gistration.

Wednesday 04 May 2022 Tuesday 02 August 2022 90 Provider

Contract Commencement Tuesday 02 August 2022 Saturday 01 October 2022 60 Technical Lead and procurement

Age Well Service

Procurement Timetable - Open Procedure

06/07/2021

Page 17



 
PUBLIC HEALTH 

Community Assets (Age Friendly 
Salford): 

  

CCG 

£97,500.00 

Ambition for Ageing 
Salford CVS 
subcontract to Age 
UK Salford  

Volunteer Development Workers Salford CVS 

Programme Management  

Salford CVS 
subcontract to 
Inspiring 
Communities 
Together 

Digital Offer (Tech and Tea) 

Third Sector 
Consortium 
subcontract to 
Inspiring 
Communities 
Together 

SCC 

£72,500.00 

  Total £449,225.50 

 

 
For the financial years 19/20, 20/21 and 21/22 the contracts held with Age UK 
have included an annual uplift. The finances detailed above may be affected if 

a further uplift is agreed for the first six months of 22/23. 
 

With a maximum 0.5% uplift, the 6 month cost to extend will be: 

Existing Contracts 21/22 Provider Commissioner 
Contract 
Amount per 
Year 

Integrated Commissioning  

Hospital Aftercare Age UK Salford  CCG £140,684.50 

Dementia Support Age UK Salford  CCG £107,914.50 

Social Rehabilitation Age UK Salford  CCG £30,626.50 
  Total  £279,225.50 

  Total with 0.5% 
Inflation £280,621.63 

Public Health 

Community Assets (Age Friendly 
Salford): 

  

CCG 

£97,500.00 

Ambition for Ageing 
Salford CVS 
subcontract to Age 
UK Salford  

Volunteer Development Workers Salford CVS 

Page 18



 

 
In addition, the uplift will affect the value below as current contract costs, at 

the time of tendering, will be used to set the financial envelope. 
 
 

7. CONTRACT NOVATION  

 
 

7.1 As detailed above, a number of the existing contracts currently sit with Salford 
CCG. In order to ensure a smooth procurement exercise and to support 
effective contract management arrangements, it is proposed that Salford City 

Council’s Procurement team lead on the procurement of the Age Well tender 
as opposed to a joint arrangement involving two procurement teams. 

 
 In order to facilitate this arrangement, it is recommended that the three 

contracts with Age UK Salford will novate across to SCC.  

 
The Community Assets service, also sat with the CCG, is currently embedded 

into a wider service level agreement held with Salford CVS. This contract will 
remain with Salford CCG with procurement responsibility being delegated to 
SCC. 

 
The proposal to novate was approved by Lead Member on the 18th August 2021 

 
 

8. FINANCES 

Programme Management 

Salford CVS 
subcontract to 
Inspiring 
Communities 
Together 

Digital Offer (Tech and Tea) 

Third Sector 
Consortium 
subcontract to 
Inspiring 
Communities 
Together 

SCC 

£72,500.00 
  Total £170,000.00 

  Total with 0.5% 
Inflation £170,850.00 

   
 

  Combined Total £449,225.50 

  

Combined Total 
with 0.5% 
Inflation £451,471.63 

Page 19



 
 

 

8.1 The current annual contract value of each existing contract for 
2021/22 is as follows: 

 

 

Existing Contracts 21/22 Provider Commissioner 
Contract 
Amount per 
Year 

Integrated Commissioning  

Hospital Aftercare Age UK Salford  CCG £281,369.00 

Dementia Support Age UK Salford  CCG £215,829.00 

Social Rehabilitation Age UK Salford  CCG £61,253.00 
  Total  £558,451.00 

Public Health 

Community Assets (Age Friendly 
Salford): 

  

CCG 

£195,000.00 

Ambition for Ageing 
Salford CVS subcontract to Age 
UK Salford  

Volunteer Development Workers Salford CVS 

Programme Management 
Salford CVS subcontract to 
Inspiring Communities Together 

Digital Offer (Tech and Tea) 
Third Sector Consortium 
subcontract to Inspiring 
Communities Together 

SCC 

£145,000.00 
  Total £340,000.00 

  Total £898,451.00 

 

 
The annual contract price of the Age Well Contract will include a maximum uplift of 

0.5% and is broken down as follows: 
 
Year 1 - 1st October 2022 - 30th September 2023 (with a 0.5% 
maximum uplift) 

Lot 1 £342,554.25 

Lot 2  £562,646.36 

Total £905,200.61 

Year 2 - 1st October 2023 - 30th September 2024 (with a 0.5% 
maximum uplift) 

Lot 1 £344,267.02 

Lot 2  £565,459.59 

Total £909,726.62 

Year 3 - 1st October 2024 - 30th September 2025 (with a 0.5% 
maximum uplift) 

Page 20



 
Lot 1 £345,988.36 

Lot 2  £568,286.89 

Total £914,275.25 

Year 4 - 1st October 2025 - 30th September 2026 (with a 0.5% 
maximum uplift) 

Lot 1 £347,718.30 

Lot 2  £571,128.33 

Total £918,846.63 

Year 5 - 1st October 2026 - 30th September 2027 (with a 0.5% 
maximum uplift) 

Lot 1 £349,456.89 

Lot 2  £573,983.97 

Total £923,440.86 

5 Year Total  £4,571,489.96 

 
 

The financial envelope for the Age Well tender will be £4,571,489.96 for a five 

year contract awarded to the successful bidder. 
 

Within the price section of the tender submission, bidding organisations will be 
expected to use the financial envelope to provide an annual cost breakdown 
including any applicable annual uplifts. Bids above £4,571,489.96 will not be 

accepted. 
 
 

9. SOCIAL VALUE 

 
 

9.1  The Age Well service will have a strong focus on social value with an 

expectation that the successful provider(s) will demonstrate, throughout 
contract duration, how they are meeting identified social value targets via the 

TOMS Framework. 
 
9.2  Engagement with current providers has begun to look at how social value can 

be achieved for the remainder of the existing contract held with these 
organisations. 

 
10. RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
10.1 Adult Commissioning Committee is asked to: 
 

a. Approve the model proposed including the service specifications for both 

lots. 
 

 
 

Page 21



 
b. Approve the finances associated with the Age Well commission 

 
 

 

 

 
 

Page 22



Document is Restricted

Page 23

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 35

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



 

   
 

 

    
    
    
     

Adults Commissioning Committee 

8th September 2021 
AGENDA ITEM NO 5 & PAPER NAME: CURE Tobacco Addiction Programme 
 
Item for Decision  
 

Report of: Assistant Director of Commissioning – Salford CCG 

Date of Paper: 19th August 2021 

In case of query, please contact: Samantha Mansfield 
Public Health Strategic Manager 
Samantha.mansfield@salford.gov.uk 
07816 084328 
 

Strategic Priorities:  
(Please tick as appropriate) 

Quality, Safety, Innovation and Research  
Adult Services  

Children’s and Maternity Services  
All Age Mental Health  

Primary Care  

Enabling Transformation  
Mayoral Priorities: 
(Please tick as appropriate) 

Tackling poverty and inequality  

Reducing Health Inequalities  

Skills and Education (A Learning City)  

Affordable Housing  
Transport and Digital Connectivity  

Tackling the Climate Change Emergency  

Vibrant Place and Spaces  

Creating an Economy for All  
 
Purpose of Paper:                                    

 
The following report provides an overview of the implementation of the CURE tobacco 
addiction programme to date, at Salford Royal Foundation Trust. Followed by a proposal to 
establish a permanent CURE service at Salford Royal with an integrated discharge pathway 
into community smoking cessation services. 
 
The ask of the committee is to approve funding to sustain the CURE Tobacco Addiction 
programme for inpatients at Salford Royal Hospital. 
 
Offer assurances of service improvement throughout the next 12 months and return to the 
committee with an update paper.  

Page 53

Agenda Item 5

mailto:Samantha.mansfield@salford.gov.uk
https://www.salford.gov.uk/cmpriorities


 

   
 

 

    
    
    
     

Further information 

How will this benefit the health and wellbeing of 
Salford residents, or the CCG or City Council? 

 
Reducing smoking prevalence saves lives. It 
also improves health, leading to a reduction 
in smoking related disease, then in turn a 
reduction in presentations at Primary Care 
and admissions to Secondary Care. 
 

How does this paper address health inequalities 
and promote inclusion? 

 
Areas with high levels of deprivation, have a 
high smoking prevalence. 
 
The financial ask is to ensure that this service 
is available for all inpatients. 
 

What risks may arise as a result of this paper 
and how will they be mitigated? 

An increase in demand for community-based 
smoking cessation services, upon discharge 
from hospital, could lead to increase costs to 
deliver these services, particularly 
pharmacotherapy costs. This is mitigated by 
reduction in costs for longer term treatment 
services. 
 
There is also an interdependency on the 
budget streams associated with smoking 
cessation services across the city, any 
changes in one will impact the others. 

Does this address any existing high risks facing 
the organisation and how does it reduce them? 

N/A 

Are there any possible conflicts of interest 
associated with this paper? 

No 

Will any current services or roles be affected by 
issues within this paper and what are they? 

SRFT CURE service 

Note: Where appropriate, please ensure detail is provided. 

 

Document Development 

Has there been Public Engagement? No 

Has there been Clinical Engagement? Yes – ICBC 

Page 54



 

   
 

 

    
    
    
     

Has the impact on Salford socially, economically 
and environmentally been considered? 

Yes 

Has there been an analysis of any impacts on 
equality? No 

Has legal advice been obtained? No 

Has this been to any groups or committees for 
engagement, comments, or approval?  

Clinical support from Integrated Community 
Based Care Group 

Financial approval at Service and Finance 
Group 

Note: Where relevant, please provide detail and ensure that it is clear how and when particular stakeholders were 
involved in this work, that there is clarity of what the key message/decision was, and whether amendments were 
requested about any part of the work.

Page 55



 

  

  
  
  
  

  
  
   

CURE – Tobacco Addiction Programme 
Salford Royal Hospital 

 

1.  Executive Summary 
  

 

Salford has the highest smoking prevalence in Greater Manchester, with almost 1 
in 5 people still smoking. Whilst rates nationally have dropped in recent years, 

Salford’s rate is not coming down at the required pace to meet the national Smoke 
Free ambitions of a smoke free generation (prevalence below 5%) by 2030. 
 

The CURE project is a secondary care programme that treats tobacco addiction. 
The initial pilot was delivered at Wythenshawe Hospital, it was then rolled out across 

all GM sites through the GM Transformation Fund and soon to be nationally through 
the NHS Long Term Plan. 
 

The delivery to date at SRFT has been disrupted due to COVID-19. For example, 
the CBA is based on support given face to face, whereas this was not an option 

when the programme first launched, and support was given over the phone. As a 
result, the outcomes are not meeting the projections, however, we understand this 
to be representative of the picture across GM and work will be undertaken over the 

next 12 months to understand this. 
 

Members of the Adults Commissioning Committee are asked to approve funding for 
the continuation of CURE programme at SRFT, alongside the existing Hospital Stop 
Smoking Service. This is on the basis that the evidence presented in this paper 

takes a whole system approach to tacking tobacco dependency and the assurances 
of the wider work taking place which underpins the longer-term effectiveness of this 

programme. 
 
The CURE funding ask is approved in principle by the GM PEB and is in line with 

the NHS LTP workstream on Treating Tobacco Dependence. 
 

There is also an ask of the group to consider the interdependences of tobacco 
budgets across the system and to consider the impacts of this when making funding 
decisions associated with tobacco control going forward. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 56



 

  

  
  
  
  

  
  
   

2.  Tobacco addiction – case for change 

 
2.1 Smoking data 

 

 In Salford, smoking prevalence in adults is 19.1%, equating to almost 40,000 people. Salford’s 
rate is the highest of all Greater Manchester localities, the second highest among its 

statistically similar (CIPFA) nearest neighbours and is also significantly higher than the 
England (13.9%) average. There are some wards in Salford where smoking rates are above 
30%. There has been some improvement since 2017, with a 2.1% fall in city wide prevalence 

between 2017 and 2019, however, rates are not dropping at the same rate as other areas. 
 
Figure 1: Smoking Prevalence in Adults, 2011-2019  

 
 
One of the most significant influences on the reduced healthy life expectancy for the people 
of Salford is smoking tobacco. We know that half of all smokers will die from a smoking related 
disease, and many of these deaths will be premature. Salford has a significantly higher rate 
of smoking attributable deaths from heart disease, stroke, lung cancer and COPD1. Between 
2016 and 2018, there were 1,348 deaths attributable to smoking in Salford, a rate of 396.5 per 
100,000, which is significantly higher than the regional and national rate. 
 
2.2 CURE pilot and transformation fund 
 
The CURE project originated as part of Greater Manchester Health & Social Care 
Partnership’s Making Smoking History programme in partnership with GM Cancer. It’s a 
comprehensive secondary care treatment programme for tobacco addiction. Taking a 

                                                                 
1 https ://fingertips.phe.org.uk/static-reports/tobacco-control/at-a-glance/E08000006.html?area-name=Salford  

0.0

5.0

10.0

15.0

20.0

25.0

30.0

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

C
u

rr
en

t 
sm

o
ke

rs
 (%

)

Calendar Year

Smoking Prevalence in adults (18+) - current smokers (APS), persons, 
Salford, Greater Manchester, England and CIPFA nearest neighbours

Salford England Greater Manchester CIPFA Nearest neighbours

Page 57

https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/static-reports/tobacco-control/at-a-glance/E08000006.html?area-name=Salford


 

  

  
  
  
  

  
  
   

systematic approach to treating tobacco addiction in patients admitted to hospital has been 
shown to reduce mortality, reduce hospital re-admissions and provide financial savings. 
 
The CURE programme identifies all active smokers on admission to secondary care and 
immediately offers pharmacotherapy, such as nicotine replacement therapy (NRT) or 
Varenicline, as well as specialist behavioural support, for the duration of their admission and 
after discharge. 
 
The CURE pilot ran at Wythenshawe Hospital from 1st October 2018 to 31st March 2019. 
Following this a cost benefit analysis was undertaken, this valued the gross financial return on 
investment at £2.12 return per £1 invested, in addition to significant, wider community savings. 
 

CURE Cost Benefit 

Analysis.pdf
 

 
Based on this, the programme received further GM Transformation Fund to roll out across 
Greater Manchester. This was funding for 12 months. The roll out was set to go live on 1st 
April 2020, however, this was delayed due to COVID-19. As a result, CURE went live at SRFT 
in August 2020, albeit with some restrictions still in place. 
 
2.3 Delivery to date 

 
In challenging circumstances, the hospital-based team have significantly increased the 
contact with smokers. 98% of inpatients with a smoking status recorded as ‘current smoker’ 
have been contacted by the CURE team with an offer of smoking cessation support. 24% of 
these patients have been supplied NRT to support their quit attempt, up from 8% as reported 
in 2019’s SRFT National Smoking Cessation Audit. 
 
It’s acknowledged that the data presented (section 5) is not yet in line with projected outcomes. 
Service delivery has been impacted by COVID-19, for example much of the engagement with 
patients has been via phone or text, as the CURE team have not been able to interact face to 
face with a significant number of patients during their hospital stay due to restrictions in access 
to wards due to the COVID-19 pandemic. Furthermore, clinical staff (who are currently 
required to prescribe the pharmacotherapy) have also been under significant pressure 
throughout the pandemic. This has meant the CURE teams opportunities to educate and 
engage with clinicians has been limited. This will have had an impact across all sites and 
collaborative work is set to be undertaken with colleagues across GM to understand the 
impact.  
 
Aside from the data, significant time has been invested by all partners to ensure whole system 
implementation. Dr Matt Evison, Lung Cancer Physician and CURE clinical lead at 
Wythenshawe Hospital noted with regard to the Wythenshawe pilot; “One of the biggest 
challenges we have faced in CURE is the discharge pathway after a hospital admission, 
particularly ensuring ongoing prescription of stop smoking medications” 
 
 

Page 58



 

  

  
  
  
  

  
  
   

Based on this learning from the pilot, in Salford a comprehensive discharge pathway has been 
implemented between the hospital and community services (Appendix 1). This has resulted in 
more referrals to community services coming out of Salford Royal than any other hospital in 
GM, this will in turn increase the number of Salford smokers making a quit attempt. Given the 
volume of referrals, the relationship between the hospital-based CURE team and Salford City 
Council’s Health Improvement Service, who deliver the community based specialist stop 
smoking service, has been strengthened. 
 
To enhance our whole system connectivity, Public Health have invested in a digital solution, 
via PharmOutcomes, to facilitate the movement of referrals between services. When the 
patient is discharged the CURE team send a notification via PharmOutcomes to the relevant 
community service to continue the patient’s treatment. There is a contractual requirement to 
action within 48 hours, meaning the patient automatically gets a continuation of behavioural 
support and free at the point of care pharmacotherapy. In addition to the financial investment 
in this pathway there has been a requirement for a strong, collaborative working relationship 
between the CURE Team, Public Health, the Community Stop Smoking Service (Salford 
Health Improvement Service), GM LPC and local pharmacies, the foundations of these 
relationships will only strengthen the service offer going forward. 
 
3. Finance 

 
3.1 The funding for CURE in Salford is £266,791. 
 This is broken down as; 

 £129,772 on staffing (2 x Band 3 and 2 x Band 5) 
 £137,069 on pharmacotherapy 

 
In addition to this, pre-CURE Salford CCG have a contract in place with SRFT to 
provide a Hospital Stop Smoking Service (Service Specification in Appendix 2), at a 
value of £160,163 per annum. This covers staffing and pharmacotherapy but not at a 
defined rate. To date, this has been used to employ 2 x Band 2 and 1 x Band 5 plus 
some pharmacotherapy costs. 
 
The proposal is to combine the CURE staffing (£129,772) and existing Hospital Stop 
Smoking Service funds (£160,163), totalling £289,908 for staff costs. The CURE 
pharmacotherapy budget is £137,069. Therefore, a total cost of £426,977. 

 
3.2 Please note; The NHS Long Term Plan commits to offering NHS-funded tobacco 

treatment services to all people admitted to hospital who smoke, by 2023/24 (Appendix 
3). Local funding has not yet been awarded by NHSE, however, this will be at ICS 
level. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 59



 

  

  
  
  
  

  
  
   

4. Workforce 

 
4.1 The staffing associated with smoking cessation in Salford Royal would be as 

follows; 
 

 CURE funded; 2 x Band 3 and 2 x Band 5 
 

 Stop Smoking Service; 2 x Band 2 and 1 x Band 6 
- The Band 6 post is an increase from Band 5 in the 

current model based on the proposed amalgamation of 
budget streams and a separate pharmacotherapy 
budget line. This role would manage the team. 

 
SRFT have identified the following costs for this staffing model: 

 
 

Page 60



 

          
       

5. Performance data 

 

Secondary Care 
Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Total 

Total number of adult admissions 3042 3057 3266 3177 3138 3242 3021 3620 3434 3683 32680 

Total number of admissions with smoking status 
recorded includes current smoker, previous smoker, 

stopped on day of current admission 1156 1218 1126 1149 1143 1184 1110 1378 1305 1418 12187 

Total number of admissions with smoking status 
recorded includes current smokers only 487 555 455 436 367 450 433 606 540 514 4843 

Total number of smokers provided with VBA 487 555 455 436 367 450 433 606 540 514 4843 

Total number of smokers contacted by CURE staff 
441 524 455 436 367 450 433 606 540 514 4766 

text/phone               182 110 103 395 

face to face               424 430 401 1255 

Total number of smokers prescribed stop smoking 
pharmacotherapy 64 75 113 112 90 100 99 178 159 153 1143 

Total number of smokers prescribed NRT 63 72 108 108 88 96 97 171 156 151 1110 

Total number of smokers prescribed Varenicline 
1 3 5 4 2 4 2 7 3 2 33 

Total number of patients wanting support after 
discharge but declining NRT as inpatient               181 180 158 519 

Total cost of stop smoking pharmacotherapy 
£8,107 £10,701 £9,106 £7,734 £8,167 £7,149 £8,698 £9,905 £10,005 £11,233 £90,806 

Primary Care 
                      

P
age 61



 

          
       

Total number of smokers accepting referral to 

community service post discharge 54 55 50 33 40 37 41 88 93 106 597 

in area                 82 86 168 

out of area                 11 20 31 

Total number of smokers attending community 
service follow up post discharge 20 36 29 15 18 33 15 36 39 39 280 

Total numbers of smokers self-reporting 
abstinence from tobacco 4 weeks post discharge 6 11 10 3 3 9 3 6 11 17 79 

Total number of smokers self-reporting 

abstinence from tobacco 12 weeks post discharge 

Reported through PharmOutcomes (Pinnacle) – 
delays in this going live due to Pinnacle's role in the vaccine roll out. 4 4 3 11 

P
age 62



 

    

    
    
     

6. Wider system considerations and risks 

 
6.1 The CURE discharge pathway has significant downstream impacts on Public Health costs, as 

once the patient leaves hospital they enter Public Health funded services for both behavioural 
support and pharmacotherapy. 

 
6.2  Due to the volume of referrals the Community Stop Smoking Service has seen an increase in 

demand for services. As an internal Council Service (delivered by the Health Improvement 
Service) there has been flexibility in the offer to absorb this demand. 

 
6.3 Due to the interdependent nature of the multiple budget streams that sit around this 

programme, any financial changes could be a risk to the programme. 
 
 

7. Recommendations 
 
7.1 Adults Commissioning Committee is asked to: 
 

 Approve funding for the CURE programme in Salford, as per the provisional agreement at 
the GM PEB. 

 Combine the budget streams for CURE and SRFT stop smoking service. From patient 
facing perspective, this is already delivered as a single service under the CURE model 
and branding but background approval of this would allow for greater assurance and 
oversight. 

 Allow time for re-drafting of the Service Specification to shape KPI’s around where service 
improvements can be made based on current data and return in 12 months with assurance 
paper. 

 
 
Samantha Mansfield 
Public Health Strategic Manager 
 
 

Appendix 1 - 

CURE Salford 

Smoking Pathway.docx
 

 

Appendix 2 - 

Hospital Stop 

Smoking Service revised Jan 19 wd 3 (3).docx
 

 
 

Appendix 3 - 

NHS Long Term 

Plan Treating tobacco dependence overview.pptx
 

  
 

Page 63



This page is intentionally left blank



This analysis sets out the results from the CURE pilot which was based at Wythenshawe Hospital from 1st October 
2018 to 31st March 2019.  It then considers the costs of rolling the approach out across Greater Manchester, 
calculates the cost per quit, and considers wider impacts through a costs benefit analysis model.

This model of care may differ in other areas of Greater Manchester for the roll out of CURE with community 
stop smoking services taking on the follow-up pathway*. Some community stop smoking services may 
supply nicotine replacement therapy (NRT) directly to patients though varenicline is often required to 
be prescribed by a GP. The frequency of follow-up consultations may also differ with community stop 
smoking services offering 2 weekly appointments for 12 weeks (6 consultations). However, not all 
smokers will complete such a regime, particularly in this opt-out model inclusive of all smokers admitted 
to hospital. Using an average of three follow-up consultations per smoker as provided in the CURE pilot 
funding therefore seems appropriate. 

Although the model of CURE delivery may differ across localities there is consistency in the requirement for 
both specialist staffing pharmacotherapy that are provided both during the inpatient admission and after 
discharge and all of these costs are included within this cost benefit analysis.    

*For the Wythenshawe CURE pilot the specialist support was provided by the secondary care CURE staff for both 
the inpatient component and outpatient follow-up. Therefore, the costs of specialist support for both inpatient 
and outpatient support are within the secondary care costs. The outpatient follow-up provided in the CURE pilot 
was a minimum of three follow-up consultations at 2,4 and 12 weeks. All medications after the 1 week provision 
at discharge from hospital were provided by GP practices and are included within primary costs. 

The following categories were under consideration for this analysis:

•  Secondary care costs
o Specialist tobacco addiction practitioners to provide behavioural change support*
o Pharmacotherapy during admission and 1 week prescription on discharge
o Lead consultant (1x PA / week)

•  Primary care costs
o Continuation of pharmacotherapy in the community

•  Project management 
o Grade 7 Project management support for the 6 month pilot. N.B. this is included in the CBA 
calculations in section 4 below, but not in the calculations for future roll out costings.

Estimated costs of roll out of Cure programme to other areas 
based on Wythenshawe Hospital pilot programme.

1. Introduction

1.1 Overview of analysis

1.2 Cost categories under consideration:

Page 65



These costs are based on the Wythenshawe pilot.  We have used smoking prevalence rates to estimate the 
equivalent costs per patient for each CCG.

Total NRT and varenicline pharmacotherapy costs for 
the pilot (the hospital component of treatment including 
the 1 week of medications post-discharge) was £27,974. 
The staffing costs for the CURE pilot (three pay-band 6 
specialist nurses plus administration support required 
to deliver opt-out specialist assessment of all smokers 
admitted to hospital and 3x follow-up consultations) was 
£68,250. The total secondary care costs were therefore 

£96,224. Additional support for the implementation of the 
CURE pilot and workforce training was provided by a 
consultant lead though this was without specific additional 
cost to the trust. However, dedicated time within a job plan 
for a lead consultant might be considered for any acute 
trust implementing CURE with an additional cost not 
accounted for in this analysis.

Smoking prevalence of the patients admitted to Wythenshawe that were screened (17.7%) is similar to the overall 
prevalence of smoking across the City of Manchester (18.7%).
Smoking prevalence of the patients admitted to Wythenshawe that were screened (17.7%) is similar to the overall 
prevalence of smoking across the City of Manchester (18.7%).

In order to estimate the costs for the roll out across other hospitals and CCGs, we have used the total admissions per 
CCG per year and then used the locality smoking prevalence to estimate how many of these patients are smokers.  This 
is then multiplied by the cost per patient figure calculated above.

Total estimated annual costs per smoking patient 
from the Wythenshawe pilot are £40.21.

Key Results from Wythenshawe pilot (1st October 2018 – 31st March 2019):

• 92% (13,515/14690) of adult admissions were screened for smoking status
• 2393 current smokers were identified 
• 96% (2308/2393) were given brief advice to quit by the admitting team
• Through the ‘opt-out’ referral process, 61% (1450/2393) patients completed 

inpatient behavioural interventions with a specialist cessation practitioner
• 66% (1568/2393) of smokers were prescribed pharmacotherapy
• 22% (525/2393) of all smokers admitted during this pilot reported they 

were abstinent from smoking at 12 weeks after discharge 

1.3 Secondary Care costs calculations

Adult 
admissions

Smoking 
prevalence

Smoker 
admissions

Secondary 
Care Costs

Bolton 73,413 24% 17,663 £         710,247
Bury 52,135 17% 8,707 £         350,096
HMR 61,811 11% 6,595 £         265,198
Manchester 136,944 20% 26,800 £      1,077,642
Oldham 59,986 22% 12,987 £         522,214
Salford 75,065 18% 13,647 £         548,747
Stockport 91,416 24% 21,684 £         871,922
Tameside & Glossop 64,261 26% 16,605 £         667,699
Trafford 63,831 8% 5,330 £         214,318
Wigan 92,443 16% 14,375 £         578,023

Page 66



Total number of admissions to Wythenshawe Hospital (18/19) = 57,465
Wythenshawe admissions from MHCC registered patients (18/19) = 19,634 (34.2%)

Number of patients admitted to Wythenshawe identified as smokers = 2393 

% of smokers discharged on medication = 66%
NB Not all patients prescribed medication during an IP will continue to use post-discharge, however using this 
number will offer the potential maximum 

Number of smokers total discharged on medication = 1579

Apply 34.2% to get an estimated number of discharge patients registered to Manchester GPs that would need a 
continued prescription = 534

The total monthly spend on smoking cessation pharmacotherapy pre and post launch of the CURE pilot within 
the South Manchester locality from January 2018 to April 2019 is provided below.

1.4.1 Annual admission data for Wythenshawe Hospital

1.4.2 MHCC patients

1.4 Primary Care cost calculations

Approximate increase in spend on tobacco addiction pharmacotherapy in the South Locality = £5000-£7500 per 
month.  Analysis of discharges from Wythenshawe to Manchester GPs show that 86.5% are from South Locality.  
Uplifting the above costs from the South Locality to the whole of Manchester CCG results in the following total cost:

Costs associated with the continuation of pharmacotherapy support post discharge will have been funded entirely 
by the CCG as there were no community services to refer patients into. Therefore this increase is a reflection of the 
total as it cannot have been provided elsewhere (apart from self-funded by the patient).

Total increase in spend for CURE pilot (6 months) = £35k to £52k for the 6 month pilot. 

South Locality GP Practice Prescribing - Smoking Cessation Costs:
Nicotine Replacement Products vs Varenicline Tartrate 

January 2017 to May 2019

Page 67



This cost is significantly less than the £300k cost pressure previously modelled during the set-up of the 
Wythenshawe pilot.  Some of the reasons for this include:

• 66% of patients accepted pharmacotherapy not the 90% predicted 
• 10% patients were prescribed varenicline not the 25% predicted
• Although the dropout rate was not predicted, 54% of patients were not followed up at 4 weeks so we can 

presume these patients were still smoking and not prescribed pharmacotherapy. 
• The funding modelled for smokers completing 12 weeks of treatment whereas the published evidence 

suggest the average course length is 6-7 weeks

In order to estimate the post discharge costs per patient we have conservatively used the £52k increase on costs 
for the 6 month pilot.  The average cost per patient is set out in the box below.

1.4.3 Discussion on costs

1.4.4 Calculation of costs

Spend per patient in Primary Care post CURE intervention (MHCC):

ESTIMATED number of MHCC pts discharged on medication = 534

Spend per MHCC patient who smokes & accepts treatment = £97*

*not all patients who were prescribed treatment on admission to hospital will continue post discharge

Page 68



We have used the £97 per patient calculated above to estimate the future follow up pharmacotherapy costs 
based on the 66% of patients who were offered this treatment in hospital.  This results in the following costs per 
year per CCG.

1.5 Pharmacotherapy costs in Primary Care – Greater Manchester

Estimated smoker
 admissions

Smokers offered 
treatment

Primary Care 
Pharmacotherapy costs

Bolton 17,663 11,658 £1,130,796
Bury 8,707 5,746 £557,393
HMR 6,595 4,353 £422,227
Manchester 26,800 17,688 £1,715,732
Oldham 12,987 8,571 £831,426
Salford 13,647 9,007 £873,669
Stockport 21,684 14,311 £1,388,202
Tameside & Glossop 16,605 10,959 £1,063,055
Trafford 5,330 3,518 £341,219
Wigan 14,375 9,487 £920,280

Combining the secondary care and primary care costs above results in the following annual cost estimates for roll 
out of the CURE programme across Greater Manchester:

2 Overall costs of the rollout per CCG

Secondary Care costs
 (per year)

Primary Care Pharmacotherapy costs 
(per year)

Total costs 
(per year)

Bolton £         710,247 £1,130,796 £1,841,043
Bury £         350,096 £557,393 £907,489
HMR £         265,198 £422,227 £687,425
Manchester £      1,077,642 £1,715,732 £2,793,374
Oldham £         522,214 £831,426 £1,353,640
Salford £         548,747 £873,669 £1,422,416
Stockport £         871,922 £1,388,202 £2,260,124
Tameside & Glossop £         667,699 £1,063,055 £1,730,754
Trafford £         214,318 £341,219 £555,538
Wigan £         578,023 £920,280 £1,498,303
Greater Manchester 
Total £      5,806,106 £9,243,999 £15,050,105

Page 69



3.1 Quit Rates

3.2 Overall Cost per quit results

3 Quit rates and Cost per quit

Total 
number

% of all 
smokers

Number of 
quits

Quit rate*
(% with FU 

data)

Quit rate**
(% of all 

smokers)
All smokers 2393 100% - - -
Completion of inpatient  
CURE assessment and treatment

1450 61% - - -

Completion of 2 week  
follow up post-discharge

1105 46% - - -

Completion of 4 week  
follow up post-discharge

1179 49% 495 42% 21%

Completion of 12 week  
follow up post-discharge

800 33% 525 66% 22%

*Quit rate in those patients completing the follow-up assessment and smoking status recorded
**Quit rate as a proportion of all smokers admitted during the pilot assuming all lost to follow-up have relapsed/continued to 
smoke (intention to treat basis)

Taking into consideration the above costs for both secondary and primary care, we estimate the costs per 
smoking patient engaged by the programme to be £104.23.  

22% of smoking patients achieve a 12 week quit as a result of the programme.  Therefore, the costs per quit rate 
at 12 weeks with the intention to treat is £475.

Comparing this cost per quit to the figures published in the PHE Local Tobacco Control Profiles:

• The CURE cost per quit is cheaper than the costs published for the 4 GM LAs where figures are available 
for 2018/19 1 

• The CURE cost per quit is cheaper than the NW average (£532) and the England average (£490) 2

1. https://digital.nhs.uk/data-and-information/publications/statistical/statistics-on-

nhs-stop-smoking-services-in-england/april-2018-to-march-2019 

1. PHE Fingertips Local Tobacco Control Profiles 

2018/19Page 70



4.1 Approach

4.2 Fiscal outputs

4 Cost Benefit Analysis

The Costs Benefit Analysis was carried out in a 2 stage process.  Initial costs and benefits were calculated using 
the European-study for Quantifying the Utility of Investment in Protection from Tobacco (EQUIPT) tool.  The 
EQUIPT tool is a second generation version of the NICE Tobacco Return on Investment tool we have previously 
used in GM for smoking cessation interventions.

The values created from the tool, were then input into the Greater Manchester CBA toolkit, to provide consistent 
metrics for comparison with other transformation programmes.

The CBA assesses the potential reductions in healthcare costs related to reductions in smoking-attributable cases 
of lung cancer, COPD, coronary heart disease and stroke.  It also assesses the individual health and wellbeing 
impacts using a Quality Adjusted Life Years approach (QALYs).

The CBA model produces both fiscal outputs and overall public value outputs.

These fiscal outputs relate to outcomes that have a potential impact on the costs of delivering public services.  As 
above, these include the potential reductions in healthcare costs related to reductions in smoking-attributable 
cases of lung cancer, COPD, coronary heart disease and stroke.  The modelling has been carried out over a 10 
year period.

Two scenarios have been modelled.  

The first looks at the gross fiscal benefits of the programme before any assessment of the cashability of the 
benefits.

• Gross financial return on investment ratio: £2.12 return per £1 invested
• Payback period 4 years

The second approach considers how much of these fiscal benefits are cashable – either through reducing 
capacity, or offsetting the need for future capacity.  The methodology uses standard percentages based on the 
government agency potentially making the savings.  For the NHS, the assumption is that approximately 50% of 
the fiscal benefits can be cashable assuming that the scale of the transformation programme is large.  Using this 
approach, the metrics are as follows:

• Cashable financial return on investment ratio: £1.06 return per £1 invested
• Payback period 10 years

4.2.1 Gross fiscal benefits

4.2.2 Cashable fiscal benefits

Page 71



4.3 Public value outputs

4.4 CBA summary

In addition to the fiscal benefits, there are significant public value benefits of the programme related to improving 
the health of the patients who quit smoking.  These can be calculated using a Quality Adjusted Life Years (QALY) 
approach which is common in health economics.  The EQUIPT model produces estimated of QALYs gained 
through the programme which we have included in the CBA model using the social value per QALY of £60,000 
per year. 

The overall Public Value metric is as follows:

• Public value return on investment ratio: £30.49 return per £1 invested

Another way of presenting the public value impact is the Incremental Cost Effectiveness Ratio (ICER).  This is 
calculated by dividing the incremental healthcare costs of delivering the project by the QALYs gained over the 
lifetime of the patients treated.  Even assuming that none of the future healthcare savings assumed above 
would be cashable, the ICER for this study would be £487.  Programmes with ICERs less that £20,000 are 
deemed by the National Institute of Health and Care Excellence (NICE) to be value for money.  Therefore this 
programme can be seen to be very good value.

The results above show that the CURE approach provides high value for money.  The fiscal return outperforms 
many other transformation programmes, and the overall public value impact is significant.

Page 72



 

Page 73



This page is intentionally left blank



   

 Page 1 of 10 

  

 

 

 

 

Service Specification 

 

Hospital Stop Smoking Service 
(SRFT) 

 

Commissioner Lead: Nicola Leak, Public Health 
on behalf of Salford CCG 

Provider Lead: Melissa Collinge, Respiratory 

Service Lead, SRFT 

 

Period: April 2018 – March 2021 

Revised for April 2019 

 
 
  

Page 75



   

 Page 2 of 10 

1. Introduction 

1.1. General 

Nationally it is estimated that 25% of patients in acute hospitals are smokers – (https://www.brit-
thoratic.org.uk/documnet-library/audit-and-quality-improvement/audit-reports/bts-smoking-
cessation-audit-report-2016/ ). 

For people accessing secondary care services there are additional advantages of quitting, including 
shorter hospital stays, lower drug doses, fewer complications, higher survival rates, decreased 
infections and fewer readmissions after surgery.  Addressing patients’ smoking needs to be a 
routine part of their treatment plan. 

 

2. Population Needs  

2.1. National and Local Context 

National Context 

The Tobacco Control Plan for England * sets out a managed and targeted approach to further 
reduce smoking prevalence, a core target of the plan is to reduce smoking prevalence amongst 
adults in England from 15.5% to 12% or less by 2022. 

Smoking accounts for approximately half the difference in life expectancy between the richest and 
poorest in society. This difference in the variation in smoking prevalence can be seen across 
England; from places where adult smoking is as low as 5% to others where smoking remains above 
25%. 

Providing support for smokers to quit is highly cost effective and the evidence is clear that smokers 
who receive a combination of pharmacotherapy and skilled behaviour support are up to four times 
as likely to quit successfully. 

*Towards a Smokefree Generation - A Tobacco Control Plan for England. DoH 
2017.https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data
/file/630217/Towards_a_Smoke_free_Generation_-_A_Tobacco_Control_Plan_for_England_2017-
2022__2_.pdf 

          Regional Context 

Greater Manchester**has stated it is leading the way for tobacco control in the UK, by setting an 
unprecedented ambition to reduce smoking prevalence levels at a pace and scale greater than any 
other major global city. The ambition is to reduce smoking by a third by the end of 2020, and 
achieve an overall adult smoking prevalence off 13%. 

There is a downward trend in smoking prevalence across most of Greater Manchester.  The 
difference of nearly 8% between the borough with the highest prevalence (Manchester 21.7%) and 
lowest smoking rate (Stockport; 12.2%) masks the fact that smoking related inequalities impact 
every borough. 

Across Greater Manchester, the number of people trying to quit smoking with the help of NHS Stop 
Smoking Services has fallen significantly since around 2015. This is partly due to the emergence of 

Page 76

https://www.brit-thoratic.org.uk/documnet-library/audit-and-quality-improvement/audit-reports/bts-smoking-cessation-audit-report-2016/
https://www.brit-thoratic.org.uk/documnet-library/audit-and-quality-improvement/audit-reports/bts-smoking-cessation-audit-report-2016/
https://www.brit-thoratic.org.uk/documnet-library/audit-and-quality-improvement/audit-reports/bts-smoking-cessation-audit-report-2016/


   

 Page 3 of 10 

e-cigs as an ‘alternative’ to smoking, but also because there are populations where smoking 
remains very entrenched. 

Despite the fall in participation, the success rate of the Stop Smoking NHS service in Greater 
Manchester went up in the last year with 39.1% of people saying they had managed to quit by their 
target date. 

In 2017, Greater Manchester Health and Social Care Partnership published its Tobacco Plan 
‘Making Smoking History’ which sets out an ambition to reduce smoking prevalence across GM by a 
third to 13% by 2020. 

The Plan also proposes to increase the number of number of smokers making a stop smoking 
attempts and to support short-term quits. 

**Making Smoking History: a Tobacco Free Greater Manchester 2017:2021. GM Health and Social 
Care Partnership. http://www.gmhsc.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2018/04/Tobacco-Free-Greater-
Manchester-Strategy.pdf 

 

2.2. Local Context 

Tobacco smoking is still the leading cause of ill health and premature death in Salford.  Half of all 
smokers die prematurely because of their smoking and have health problems for an average of 10 
years before they die. The Salford average of adults who smoke in Salford is 22.9%, but there are 
areas where smoking rates are above 30%, reflected in Salford’s health inequalities. 

The rate of smoking attributable hospital admissions for 2016/17 in Salford reflects this, with a rate 
of 2,549 per 100,000 compared to 1,685 per 100,000 for England (Salford Tobacco Profile). 

There is a need to provide high quality stop smoking interventions in the acute setting. This 
specification sets out the requirements of a dedicated stop smoking service in Salford Royal 
Foundation Trust. 

 

3. Service Outputs and Outcomes  

The service will contribute to the following Public Health Outcomes: 

 Smoking prevalence in adults 

 Mortality from causes considered preventable 

 Mortality from all cardiovascular diseases (including heart disease and stroke) 

 Mortality from cancer 

 Mortality from respiratory diseases 

 

Page 77



   

 Page 4 of 10 

4. Scope of Service 

4.1. Aims and Objectives 

4.1.1. Aims 

The aims are 

 To provide a dedicated, focused and co-ordinated smoking cessation service within Salford 

Royal Foundation Trust, for all patients who smoke. 

 To collaborate with the Salford Council Specialist Stop Smoking Service to support targeted 

smokers to quit. 

 Achieve a successful quits in smokers. 

4.1.2. Objectives  

The objectives are to:  

 Provide a service delivered by a competent and confident workforce trained to Level 2 or 3 
stop smoking interventions (NCSCT) www.ncsct.co.uk/index.php 

 Collaborate with the Specialist Stop Smoking team in Salford Council’s Health Improvement 
Services to provide a joined up pathway for those smokers who are supported to quit whilst 
in hospital and who are then discharged before a 4 week quit can be achieved through the 
hospital team. 

 Collaborate with the Specialist Community team to provide electronic cigarette (e-cig) 
friendly support, to complement the existing Nicotine Replacement Therapy (NRT) service. 

 Provide effective NRT support service through the hospital pharmacy. 

 Where quits are achieved within the Hospital setting, carry out Carbon Monoxide testing to 
validate the quit. 

 Support the delivery of quit smoking pathways across the hospital system. 

 Develop and make available information resources for staff and for patients on the service 
and support available. 

 Complete the day to day data monitoring requirements for all smokers accessing support 
within the hospital  

 Ensure data is made accessible to the Commissioner in a timely manner to meet the 
quarterly deadlines for Department of Health reporting, using the agreed system. 

 Provide quarterly performance updates to the commissioner as required. 

 Develop and implement a system to track effectiveness of referrals made following a brief 
intervention in all appropriate parts of the Hospital. 

 Support the development and delivery of SRFT smoke free initiatives for patients. 

Page 78

http://www.ncsct.co.uk/index.php


   

 Page 5 of 10 

 Maintain carbon monoxide monitoring equipment 

Accessibility/ acceptability 

 Services are to be provided in appropriate locations within SRFT buildings which allow 
access by patients. This includes access by patients such as language. 

 All patients to be first contacted by the service within 1-2 days depending on length of stay in 
hospital 

Whole System Relationships 

 Referrals/ relationships need to be made with clinical pathways for respiratory illnesses 
(including COPD and asthma), vascular screening, cardiac rehab, maternal care, diabetes 
and GI services 

 Collaboration in the delivery of support with the Specialist Community stop smoking service 

Interdependencies 

 Level 2 and level 3 providers of stop smoking services in Salford. 

 Acute service providers 

 Antenatal service providers 

 Mental Health service providers 

 Substance Misuse services 

 

4.2. Service Delivery 

The SRFT stop smoking service will be managed, overseen and co-ordinated by SRFT stop 
smoking team. 

The Service will provide a core face to face service to the patient in the hospital setting. Other 
approaches can be provided to back up the core approach). 

There is no maximum number of sessions, but a minimum to initiate a quit and provide adequate 
support will be expected (suggest minimum of 3). 

Advisors will guide smokers into the most appropriate quit option, whilst they are in hospital. 

A range of nicotine replacement therapy will be accessible to support a planned quit, incl Champix.. 

The Service will provide information and advice on e-cigarettes as an aide to quit smoking in line 
with Salford’s e cig guidance (in production).  

The Service will actively collaborate with the Specialist Community service: 

• to provide a managed hand over of patients who quit in hospital and who require specialist 
support to maintain their quit 

• in the development of specific stop smoking / clinical expertise related to smoking conditions 

• shared development of resources 

Page 79



   

 Page 6 of 10 

• pathway development 
 

Where smokers are handed onto Specialist Community Support, relevant patient data will also be 
shared with the Specialist Advisor. Patients accessing the hospital service will be made aware of 
this and consent will be requested. 

The service will collect data as follows: core patient details, assessment date, quit date, quit, type 
and amount of NRT, other support information where appropriate. 

The Service will be actively promoted to patients across the hospital and specifically with patients 
who have a smoking related condition on admission. 

The Service will signpost smokers who are assessed as being able to benefit from non-specialist 
support to Primary Care provision (GP and Community Pharmacy). 

Staff delivering the service will be trained in an appropriate range of approaches and skills to 
motivate and enable smokers to quit. These are set out in National Centre for Smoking Cessation 
Training guidelines. 

Hospital advisors will support development of skills in other hospital workers, to aid the delivery of 
effective stop smoking support, through training, skills share. 

 

4.2.1. Care pathways and protocols 

Existing stop smoking referral and support pathways (as in 2017/18) will be maintained and 
additional ones will be developed and may include: 

▪ Referrals via inpatient and outpatient services 

▪ Ward based referrals  

▪ Referrals and case management following agreed pathways between SRFT providers and 

Specialist Community Stop Smoking Service. 

▪ Other jointly managed quits with other providers of stop smoking services 

▪ Referrals to other out of area stop smoking services 

 

4.3. Population 

4.4. Inclusion and Exclusion Criteria 

4.4.1. Inclusion criteria 

The service will cover all Salford residents aged over 16 years who are admitted to SRFT, in 
particular those patients who are deemed at ‘high risk’, e.g. diagnosed with respiratory illnesses 
and cardio vascular conditions. 

 SRFT patients and employees. 

Page 80



   

 Page 7 of 10 

 Where in patients are not Salford residents / GP registered, stop smoking advice will be 

provided, with signposting to the patients local stop smoking service as appropriate. 

4.4.2. Exclusion criteria 

 Under 16 year olds 

4.5. Referral criteria & sources 

 Self referral 

 Referral from any service in SRFT 

 Referral from other acute provider 

 

5. Service Monitoring 

 The Service will provide quarterly performance reports to the commissioner on activity, key 
performance indicators (KPIs) and identified outcome measures. 

 The Service will ensure monitoring data is available prior to reporting deadlines for submission 
of quit smoking data to Dept of Health. Dates to me made available. 

 See Appendix A for KPIs. 

 

6. Applicable Service Standards/ Guidance 

Relevant NICE guidance is:  

 NICE guidelines NG92. March 2018. Stop smoking interventions and services. 

 E-cigarettes: an evidence update. https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/e-cigarettes-

an-evidence-update 

 Stop Smoking Services PH10 February 2008, updated Nov 2013. 

 Smoking Harm Reduction PH45 June 2013 

 Smoking Cessation in acute, mental health and maternity services   PH48, November 2013 

 Making Smoking History: A Tobacco Free Greater Manchester 2017-2021 

 Models of delivery for stop smoking services – options and evidence, PHE, Sept 2017 

 
 
 

7. Prices & Costs 

 

Page 81

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/e-cigarettes-an-evidence-update
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/e-cigarettes-an-evidence-update


   

 Page 8 of 10 

 
Basis of contract 

 
Unit of 
measurement 

 
Price 

 
Expected Contract 
Value 

   
 
Pay  (including on costs) 

 

  Total  £160,136 £160,136 

 
    
    
    
 

   

    

    

 
 
 
 

 

  

Page 82



   

 Page 9 of 10 

Appendix A – Key Performance Indicators 

   

 KPI Note  

1 Number of smokers attending SRFT who access face 
to face support via an assessment – 1500 per quarter. 

  

2 Initial assessment: 

100% of patients referred to the Stop Smoking 
Service are assessed for motivation to quit. 

Expected to be in the region of 150 to 200 per month. 

This is dependent on the hospital 
pathway for accessing stop 
smoking service and 
responsiveness of the Stop 
Smoking Service.  

 

3 Motivating a quit attempt: 

Patients assessed by a stop smoking advisor are 
encouraged and supported to quit. 

80% of smokers who are engaged by the service, 
initiate a quit attempt from the initial engagement. 

 

 

This is the % of smokers who are 
engaged in a quit attempt, 
following referral and 
assessment. 

Monitored through quit date. 

 

4 Maintenance of stop smoking support 

90% of smokers who initiate a quit attempt in hospital 
are provided with either a referral / signpost to 
community provision on discharge. 

 

This % includes those smokers 
who are handed over to Specialist 
Community Service. 

 

5 Achievement of quit in patients who initiate a quit 
and who are in hospital for sufficient time to 
record a 4 week quit 

35% of patients who start a quit and achieve a 
successful 4 week quit 

 

This relates only to those patients 
who are in hospital for sufficient 
time. It is not a requirement to 
achieve quits in the sense that 
smokers will be passed on to 
other community provision as 
described in the specification. 

 

Page 83



   

 Page 10 of 10 

6 Effectiveness 

For those smokers who require specialist support on 
discharge from SRFT, there is a handover to the 
Specialist Stop Smoking Community Service. 

Through collaboration, for those smokers who are 
handed over to the Specialist Community Service, 
40% achieve a successful quit. 

 

 

These smokers will be those who 
are heavy smokers, history of 
previous attempts and have a 
smoking related illness / smoking 
related admission. 

Handover criteria and process to 
be agreed between Hospital and 
Community Specialist Services. 

A CO reading is required to 
validate the quit. 

 

7 People supported to quit using e-cigs: 

Development of a protocol to support people to quit 
using an e-cig. 

Monitoring of outcomes from e cig users: 

- Number of smokers switching to e cigs whilst in 
hospital 

- Quits achieved (ie no longer using tobacco products) 
whilst in hospital. 

 

No set measurement. 
Requirement is to monitor this 
part of the service. 

Note that a ‘quit’ achieved whilst 
in hospital through switching from 
tobacco smoking to an e-cig 
needs to be recorded. 

Monitoring at 4 weeks post quit 
date required to count as 4 week 
quit. 

 

8 CO test all referrals who attend the service 

At least 80% of smokers receiving support to have a 
CO test on quitting and at discharge. 

  

9 Provision of e cig information resources for staff and 
patients. 

Provide copies of information  

 

 

Page 84



NHS Long Term Plan

Treating tobacco dependence

Rachel Swindells, Tobacco Control Programme Manager, 

Public Health England

P
age 85



THE CASE FOR CHANGE 
Ta

ck
lin

g 
av

o
id

ab
le

 il
ln

es
s,

 r
ed

u
ci

n
g 

 h
ea

lt
h

 in
eq

u
al

it
ie

s 
an

d
 r

ed
u

ci
n

g 
d

em
an

d
 o

n
 s

er
vi

ce
s

CLINICAL CASE

Supporting delivery of NHS-funded Tobacco Dependence Treatment Services in line with the NHS LTP commitments  

BUSINESS CASE

The Global Burden of Disease ranks tobacco as the top modifiable 
risk factor that drives deaths and disability (GBD, 2017). 

Smoking tobacco is linked to nearly 500,000 hospital admissions 
each year, with smokers being 36% more likely to be admitted to 
hospital. 

Stopping smoking results in an improved response to cancer 
treatments, faster recovery after surgery, fewer exacerbations of 
cardiovascular disease, slower decline in lung function, lower 
pharmacotherapy costs (for mental health patients) (RCP, 2018) 
and a beneficial impact on long-term levels of depression and 
anxiety (Taylor, 2014). 

Smoking in pregnancy is the main modifiable risk factor for a range 
of poor pregnancy outcomes, Women from the most deprived 
communities are 12x more likely to smoke during pregnancy than 
women from more affluent areas. 

Those with mental health conditions die, on average,10-20 years 
earlier than the general population. Smoking is the single largest 
cause of this gap in life expectancy.

The estimated annual cost to the NHS in England of treating 
smoking-related illness is £2.6bn (GOV, 2015), and secondary care 
avoidable costs are estimated at £890m per year (RCP 2018).

Supporting NHS staff to beat their tobacco dependence could save 
circa £206m per year by reducing absenteeism, ill health treatment 
and loss of productivity(RCP 2018).

The RCP have estimated that adopting the Ottawa model for 
smoking cessation in the NHS would result in a net return of £60m 
in the first year.

Applying the Ottawa assumptions to national modelling indicates 
that, nationally, the NHS could save nearly 100,000 admissions by 
the end of 2023/24.

Maternal smoking during pregnancy costs the NHS in England 
approximately £21 million each year in secondary care costs, (RCP, 
2018).

Exposure of children to second-hand smoke costs the NHS in 
England at least £5 million, mostly from the treatment of lower 
respiratory infections and middle ear disease (RCP, 2018).

P
age 86



V
e

ry
 B

ri
e

f 
A

d
vi

ce
 t

ra
in

in
g 

fo
r

al
l f

ro
n

t 
lin

e 
st

af
f 

 (
id

ea
lly

 m
an

d
at

o
ry

).
 

Sp
ec

ia
lis

t 
tr

ai
n

in
g 

fo
r 

To
b

ac
co

 D
ep

en
d

en
ce

 A
d

vi
so

rs
 

Although part of the LTP overall bundled funding allocation, the Prevention Programme intend to 
highlight to systems the associated allocation for tobacco interventions

All people 
admitted to 
hospital who 
smoke will be 
offered NHS-
funded tobacco 
treatment 
services 
[including MH 
inpatients].

A new offer for 
higher risk 
outpatients 
will  be 
available as 
part of 
specialist 
mental health 
services

Every patient admitted to 
hospital (acute and mental 
health sites) and pregnant 
women are;
1. Screened for smoking 

status
2. Opt-out referred to 

tobacco dependence 
advisor 

3. Provided Personalised
behavioural support and 
pharmacotherapy

4. Provided discharge 
package including 
continuing or transfer of 
care to continued 
smoking cessation 
support

Co-developed with a range of 
national, regional & system 

partners 

FUNDING

The NHS will make a significant new contribution to making England a smokefree society, by supporting people in contact with NHS services to quit.

Supporting delivery of NHS-funded Tobacco Dependence Treatment Services in line with the NHS LTP commitments  

AIM
By 2023/24;

The model will 
be adapted for 
expectant 
mothers, and

their partners

Early Implementer sites to 
stress-test model  pathways

DELIVERY MODEL

Delivered in conjunction with 
LA  Stop Smoking Services

All systems to initiate 
rollout by the start of 
Quarter 2, with a 
requirement for 
delivery of services to 
commence, at the 
latest, by the start of 
Quarter 4

From April 2021 onwards, the bulk of the tobacco workstream funding will be released to systems 
(ICS level) through the SDF transformation allocation

Funding will be increasing year on year to 2023/24, so each system should establish a 
prioritisation process, identifying where future sites will be rolled out, e.g. by targeting 

implementation to areas of greatest prevalence based on local data.

The headline national trajectory of patient coverage that underpinned the funding allocations is:

% coverage 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 

Inpatients 4.6% 70% 83% 100% 
Maternity 4.6% 40% 75% 100% 

Outpatients - - 4.6% 40% 
 

PROPOSED ROLL OUT  

P
age 87



Supporting delivery of NHS-funded Tobacco Dependence Treatment Services in line with the NHS LTP commitments  

Model pathway –

Inpatients 

The recommended model is based on 
delivering systematic treatment of tobacco 
dependence in secondary care.

Patients are provided with behavioural 
support, nicotine replacement therapy (NRT) 
or other pharmacotherapy (e.g. Varenicline) 
during their hospitalisation, with follow up 
post-discharge. 

P
age 88



Supporting delivery of NHS-funded Tobacco Dependence Treatment Services in line with the NHS LTP commitments  

Model pathway –

Maternity 

The model for pregnant women is more intensive and is 
intended to be delivered within maternity services,in
line with NICE guidance NG92.

The model builds on the Saving Babies’ Lives Care Bundle 
(SBLCB), where all women are assessed for CO exposure 
at booking, and will support pregnant women to beat 
their tobacco dependence through weekly face-to-face 
behavioural support and licensed pharmacotherapy –
specifically combination NRT.

P
age 89



Contact details;

Rachel Swindells, Tobacco Control Programme Manager 

(NHS, LTP – North West)

Public Health England

Rachel.Swindells@phe.gov.uk

P
age 90

mailto:Rachel.Swindells@phe.gov.uk


 

   
 

 

    
    
    
     

NAME OF MEETING: Adults Commissioning Committee  

DATE OF MEETING: 08/09/2021 
AGENDA ITEM NO & PAPER NAME: Item 6 Aspire (CIC) Contract – VAT impact 

and options 
 
Item for: Decision 
 

Report of: Lead Member for Adults Health and Wellbeing 

Date of Paper: 08/09/2021 

In case of query, please contact: Paul Walsh, paul.walsh@salford.gov.uk 

Strategic Priorities:  
(Please tick as appropriate) 

Quality, Safety, Innovation and Research  
Adult Services Y 

Children’s and Maternity Services  
All Age Mental Health  

Primary Care  
Enabling Transformation  

Mayoral Priorities: 
(Please tick as appropriate) 

Tackling poverty and inequality Y 
Reducing Health Inequalities Y 

Skills and Education (A Learning City)  

Affordable Housing  
Transport and Digital Connectivity  

Tackling the Climate Change Emergency  
Vibrant Place and Spaces  

Creating an Economy for All  
Purpose of Paper:                                    
 
To set out matters relating to the VAT pressure on the contract between Salford 
Royal Foundation Trust as the contracting organisation and Aspire (CIC) as the 
provider organisation. To offer options and to make a recommendation to mitigate 
the VAT risk by novating the contract to Salford City Council as the contracting 
organisation 

 
  

Page 91

Agenda Item 6

https://www.salford.gov.uk/cmpriorities


 

   
 

 

    
    
    
     

Further information 

How will this benefit the health and wellbeing of 
Salford residents, or the CCG or City Council? 

 
Maintain service for vulnerable adults whilst 
removing a VAT risk to the contract 
 

How does this paper address health inequalities 
and promote inclusion? 

Maintain service for vulnerable adults 

What risks may arise as a result of this paper 
and how will they be mitigated? 

The paper seeks to mitigate the VAT risk of 
the current contracting arrangement 

Does this address any existing high risks facing 
the organisation and how does it reduce them? 

No 

Are there any possible conflicts of interest 
associated with this paper? 

No 

Will any current services or roles be affected by 
issues within this paper and what are they? 

No 

Note: Where appropriate, please ensure detail is provided. 

Document Development 

Has there been Public Engagement? No 

Has there been Clinical Engagement? No 

Has the impact on Salford socially, economically 
and environmentally been considered? 

Yes, the budget impact of the VAT risk to the 
contract 

Has there been an analysis of any impacts on 
equality? 

No 

Has legal advice been obtained? Yes – included in the body of the report 

Has this been to any groups or committees for 
engagement, comments, or approval?  

Directorate Management Group, Thursday 
22nd July 2021 

Service & Finance Group, Tuesday 7th 
September 2021 

Page 92



 

   
 

 

    
    
    
     

Lead Member Briefing, Wednesday 4th August 
2021   

 
Note: Where relevant, please provide detail and ensure that it is clear how and when particular stakeholders were 
involved in this work, that there is clarity of what the key message/decision was, and whether amendments were 
requested about any part of the work.

Page 93



 

  

  
  
  
  

  
  
   

Aspire (CIC) Contract – VAT Impact and Options 
 

1.  Executive Summary 

   

In 2015 Salford City Council approved the establishment of an independent 
community interest company (Aspire CIC) to deliver a range of services for 

vulnerable adults. 
 

The contract for this service was transferred from Salford City Council to Salford 
Royal Foundation Trust in 2016. 
 

As a result of the approach to VAT by HMRC, Salford Royal Foundation Trust is now 
subject to VAT costs of c. £470k per annum, related to this contract. 

 
Advice has been sought on options to remove this VAT ‘pressure’, which indicate a 
preferred option to transfer the contract from Salford Royal Foundation Trust to 

Salford City Council, with an associated service level agreement for Salford Royal 
Foundation Trust relating to the Social Work and Market Management components 

of servicing the contract. 
 

 

2.  Background 
 

2.01  Aspire, was created in June 2015 for the delivery of care services for adults with 
complex social care needs. The services, previously provided by the council’s internal 

provider arrangements, are now delivered by Aspire, which is a community interest 
company, and a completely separate legal entity to the council.  

 
2.02 Services are provided to more than 800 service users who have eligible needs 
under the eligibility criteria of the Care Act 2014. This provision is carried out by just 

under 400 staff.  
 

2.03 Services can be largely grouped under the following 5 areas of provision.  
Indicative values are also provided 1 : 
 

 Day Services: Alexandra House, Poppy Day Centre,  Brierley House, St 
Georges Resources Centre, Waterside - £2.0m 

  

 Learning Disability Supported Tenancies - £5.5m 

  

 Shared Lives - £0.1m 
  

 Learning Disability Respite:  Granville House - £0.8m 

                                                                 
1 Management and overheads add an addition £0.7m to make up the £9.6m 

Page 94



 

  

  
  
  
  

  
  
   

  

 Humphrey Booth Resource Centre - £0.5m 
 
2.04 The contract was established for a five-year period with the cost to the counci l 

scheduled to rise each year and planned to have risen to £10.9m by year five 2.  
 

2.05 The Salford City Council novated the contract to Salford Royal Foundation Trust 
(SRFT) on 1 July 2016, as part of the implementation of the Integrated Care 
Organisation (Salford Care Organisation (SCO)).  It was agreed as part of the transfer 

to SRFT that Commissioners would continue to support the contract management 
function for a period of one year, giving time for SCO to establish and recognise that 

this was a new commissioned service, that Aspire was still in development and also 
taking into account the considerable size and complexity of this provision.  
 

2.06 Since 1st July 2017 SRFT has been responsible for the contract management 
and quality assurance of Aspire, just as they are with the rest of the adult social care 

supply chain which novated to SRFT in July 2016, meeting Salford City Council’s Care 
Act 2014 responsibilities regarding market management.  
 
 

3. VAT Impact 
 

3.1 The current arrangements for delivery of Aspire services have resulted in an 
unintended VAT impact on SRFT of c.£470k pa. This has arisen from HMRC clarifying 

their position (/adopting a stricter view) on integrated arrangements which means that 
SRFT would be unable to recover all its VAT expenditure in respect of the Aspire 
services. SRFT have been in discussion with HMRC but have been unable to resolve 

the situation. A solution through restructuring the current arrangements is therefore 
sought. 
 
 

4. Options 
 

4.01 Salford City Council has sought advice from Price Waterhouse Coopers (PWC) 
on options that might relieve the situation. PWC has presented 3 options which have 
been appraised. The key characteristics of each option are set out in Appendix A. 

 

 Option 1 is the current situation, where a VAT impact falls on SRFT 

 Option 2 mitigates the VAT impact on SRFT, but creates a partial exemption risk 

for the council 

                                                                 
2 Owing to the transfer of the Limes to SRFT in July 2017, the contract value reduced to £9,622,778 

Page 95



 

  

  
  
  
  

  
  
   

 Option 3 mitigates the VAT impact on SRFT, without creating a partial exemption 

risk for the council, but involves principle and contractual changes to the current 

arrangements.  

 

 

5. The Partial Exemption Risk 
 

5.01 Normally, organisations cannot fully recover all their VAT expenditure where 
they have income sources that are exempt from VAT. As a council, SCC enjoys “section 

33” status which gives it certain VAT benefits, including the ability to fully reclaim all 
VAT, even on exempt supplies, so long as the council stays within a partial exemption 

calculation limit. Should it exceed that calculated limit, the impact on SCC is potentially 
up to £4m. 
 

5.02 While options 2 and 3 both resolve the identified VAT impact for SRFT, option 2 
threatens the council’s partial exemption calculation. The proposed Option 3 is 

therefore preferred. 
 
 

6. Preferred Option 

 
6.01 The preferred option 3 is for SCC to take over responsibility from SRFT of 
the provision of service to the end user. The service can still be sub-contracted from 

Aspire CIC. As SCC does not have the staff to manage the Aspire contract, it would 
need to source capacity from within the SRFT market management and social work 

teams. 
 
6.02 This option could be implemented through the following changes to contractual 

arrangements: 
 

6.03 Integrated Care Partnership Agreement 

 No amendments required to the partnership agreement between 

SCCG and SCC 

6.04 ICO contract 

 The Aspire services would need to be removed from the ICO contract 

between SCCG and SRFT 

 The ICO contract would be reduced in value by A+B where 

o A is the value of the Aspire contract 

o B is the cost of managing the Aspire contract within SRFT  

6.05 Integrated fund – new funding of SCC 

 Funding of A+B would be returned from the integrated fund to SCC 

 SCC to invoice SCCG? 

Page 96



 

  

  
  
  
  

  
  
   

6.06 Aspire contract  

 Novate the contract from SRFT to SCC 

 Value of the contract remains at its current value A 

6.07 New SLA contract 

 SRFT provide capacity to manage Aspire contract through an SLA 

 The value of the SLA contract to be B 
 
 

7. Turning Point 

 
7.01 For information, a situation with some similarities exists with the Turning Point 

contract. Turning Point employs a two company structure to secure itself a tax 
advantage. The services are provided by a CQC-registered company, but SRFT 
contracts with a complementary non-CQC-registered company.  Unfortunately, this has 

created a VAT problem for SRFT, which is now unable to recover its VAT expenditure 
on the contract. 

 
7.02 PWC has advised that, if the contract is novated to the council, an arrangement 
similar to option 3 can be set up. SCC will then be able to recover VAT, provided that 

the contract documentation gives the council adequate governance and oversight to 
ensure that the services will only be delivered by the CQC-registered entity. A final 

recommendation will be brought forward on this matter in due course. 
 

 
8. Miscellaneous 

 
8.01 PWC has advised that: 

 

 Documenting arrangements is key 

 SCC choosing to structure its affairs and contractual arrangements in a way 

that suits it, including consideration of the most efficient tax arrangement, is 

perfectly in order from HMRC’s point of view. 

 
 

9. Strategic Implications and Impact 

 

9.01 Under the current agreements for integrated care, Salford City Council has 

delegated a range of Care Act 2014 duties to Salford Royal Foundation Trust which 

enable the integration of Adult Social Care services with Health services within a single 

provider organisation. 

 

Page 97



 

  

  
  
  
  

  
  
   

9.02 These arrangements include those duties under Section 4 of the Care Act 2014 

and the associated Care and Support Statutory Guidance, typically relating to the 

oversight of the ‘independent’ sector adult social care market. 

 

9.03 This recommendation will alter the current arrangements to the extent that circa 

£10m pa commissioning investment into Adult Social Care will move from a contracting 

arrangement led by SRFT with Aspire to contracting arrangement led by SCC with 

Aspire.  

 

9.04 This would result in formal contracting responsibility being transferred from 

SRFT to be managed under Salford City Council policy, under the governance of the 

Procurement Board. It would retain the strategic commissioning arrangement with 

Salford City Council. 

 

9.05 The recommendation does however propose that the contracting capacity and 

the work associated with servicing the contract, remains with SRFT’s Adult Social Care 

Market Management Team, who will be accountable to SCC under council procurement 

strategy. This relationship will be managed by the People directorate under the retained 

DASS Care Act 2014 responsibilities, through the integrated commissioning team.  

 

9.06 Maintaining the responsibility for servicing the contract with SRFT, whilst at the 

same time connecting this into council procurement governance, will serve to maintain 

the arrangements for the delegated duties under Section 4 of the Care Act 2014 from 

the council to SRFT. 

 
 
10. Legal and Procurement comment 

 

10.01 The report sets out the reasons for, and the three options considered for 

operating models to safeguard the future of provision for adults with complex needs 
under the Aspire contract, in summary, and following detailed advice from PWC; 
 

1. maintain the current situation, where a heavy VAT impact falls on SRFT; 
2. mitigate the VAT impact on SRFT by contracting with SRFT but creating a 

potential partial exemption risk for the Council; and 
3. the recommended option to mitigate VAT risk whereby the contract between 
SRFT and Aspire is novated to the Council as the contracting party and avoids 

the partial exemption risk and take over responsibility for the provision of service 
to the end user from SRFT. 

 

10.02 When the contract for adult services was originally awarded to Aspire by the 
Council (and then subsequently novated to SRFT when the ICO was created), Legal 

Services worked closely with procurement colleagues in considering and advising on 

Page 98



 

  

  
  
  
  

  
  
   

the process for awarding the contract to Aspire, in summary by concluding that a direct 

award preceded by the issuing of a VEAT notice to be the most appropriate method. 
That process permitted the award of a 5-year contract to Aspire under then current 
procurement legislation. SRFT extended that term for 12 months, and it is understood 

that they are in the process of approving a further extension to the term for a period of 
2 years with an optional further 12 months to run from 1st June 2021 (to expire therefore 

on 31st May 2023 or if the additional 12 months option is exercised to 31st May 2024).  
 
10.03 To enable the proposed recommendation to take place there are several 

contractual arrangement issues which need to be addressed. These are set out at 
section 5 of the report, and Legal Services will assist where required to ensure the 

Council’s interests re protected with the novation of the contract (described above) 
between SRFT and Aspire, and the agreement to be put in place for SRFT to manage 
the Aspire arrangement on the Council’s behalf.  

 
10.04 The financial arrangements will also need to be clearly documented, both for the 

parties involved, and for HMRC purposes should they request to see evidence of the 
arrangement. 
 

10.05 Whilst the PCR give some flexibility to awarding contracts or extensions under 
regulation 72 (modification of contracts), regulation 32 (negotiated procedure without 

prior publication), and possibly regulation 77 (reserved contracts for certain services), 
and regulation 74 (“light touch regime services”), Council must comply with the Public 
Contract Regulations 2015 (PCR) ), which require that contracting authorities treat 

candidates equally and in a non-discriminatory way and act in a transparent manner. In 
addition, the Council is required to comply with the requirements of its own Contractual 

Standing Orders (CSO’s), Financial Regulations and the duties of Best and Social value 
failing which a contract may be subject to legal challenge from an aggrieved provider. 
 

10.06 The recommendation contained within the report outlines the novation of the 
existing contract from SRFT to the council.  As the contract transfers from SRFT to the 

council, the council will be required to tender the services in compliance with the Public 
Sector contract regulations and the council’s contractual standing orders through the 
light touch regime 

 
 

11. Recommendation 
 

11.01 The Adult Commissioning Committee is asked to: 

 Approve that the provision of the services to the end user is returned to SCC 

from SRFT 

 Approve that the contractual changes set out in section 5 are put into effect 
 

Paul Walsh 
Assistant Director Integrated Commissioning 

Page 99



This page is intentionally left blank



 

   
 

 

    
    
    
     

Adults’ Commissioning Committee  

8th September 2021 
7. Finance Report  
 
Item for: Assurance 
 

Report of: Chief Finance Officer 

Date of Paper: 1st September 2021 

In case of query, please contact: David Warhurst, Interim Chief Finance Officer 

Strategic Priorities:  
(Please tick as appropriate) 

Quality, Safety, Innovation and Research  

Adult Services 

Children’s and Maternity Services  

All Age Mental Health  
Primary Care  

Enabling Transformation  
Mayoral Priorities: 
(Please tick as appropriate) 

Tackling poverty and inequality  
Reducing Health Inequalities  

Skills and Education (A Learning City)  
Affordable Housing  

Transport and Digital Connectivity  
Tackling the Climate Change Emergency  

Vibrant Place and Spaces  
Creating an Economy for All  

Purpose of Paper:                                    

 
This paper provides the Adults’ Commissioning Committee with an update relating to the 
YTD financial performance and forecast and associated risks to the financial plan of the 
Adults Integrated Fund for 2021/22.  

Page 101

Agenda Item 7

https://www.salford.gov.uk/cmpriorities


 

   
 

 

    
    
    
     

Further information 

How will this benefit the health and wellbeing of 
Salford residents, or the CCG or City Council? 

Ensuring public funding is spent 
appropriately.  Achieving Value for Money, 
ensuring that funding is available to protect 
core services. 

How does this paper address health inequalities 
and promote inclusion? 

Financial and performance pressures 
associated with the adults’ integrated fund 
services. Through management of committed 
developments and holding providers to 
account for performance. 

What risks may arise as a result of this paper 
and how will they be mitigated? 

 

Does this address any existing high risks facing 
the organisation and how does it reduce them? 

 

Are there any possible conflicts of interest 
associated with this paper? 

N/A 

Will any current services or roles be affected by 
issues within this paper and what are they? 

N/A 

Note: Where appropriate, please ensure detail is provided. 

 
Document Development 

Has there been Public Engagement? N/A 

Has there been Clinical Engagement? N/A 

Has the impact on Salford socially, economically 
and environmentally been considered? 

N/A 

Has there been an analysis of any impacts on 
equality? N/A 

Has legal advice been obtained? N/A 

Has this been to any groups or committees for 
engagement, comments, or approval?  

Elements have been reviewed by the Service and 
Finance Group 

Note: Where relevant, please provide detail and ensure that it is clear how and when particular stakeholders were 
involved in this work, that there is clarity of what the key message/decision was, and whether amendments were 
requested about any part of the work.

Page 102



 

  

  
  
  
  

  
  
   

Finance Report 
 

1.  Executive Summary 
   
 
This finance report provides the Adults’ Commissioning Committee (ACC) with an in-year 
update in relation to the financial performance of the adults’ element of the Integrated Fund.  
 
At July 2021, the adults’ element of the Integrated Fund is currently forecasting to be 
overspent by £4.4m. The last report forecast an overspend of £2.2m, a worsening in the 
position by £2.2m.  
 
At £4.4m, the Adult’s fund would be £1.3m overspent against the planned deficit of £3.1m. 
 
Section 2 – Highlights the YTD and Forecast of the adults integrated fund up to July 2021 

with a projected £4.4m overspend for the year against a planned opening adults’ pressure 
of £3.1m. The main movements are summarised below.  
 

 £1.9m shortfall in client and customer receipts 
 £0.3m community equipment store increased costs 
 £0.5m continuing healthcare increased costs, offset by 
 (£0.5m) slippage in planned investments 

 
Section 3 – Gives an update on the saving programme required in 2021/22 for the plan to 
be deliverable. 
 
Section 4 – Provides an update on the investment decisions made as part of the Adults’ 

plan for 2021/22. 
 
ACC is asked to note the financial position along with the requirement to deliver on the 
savings programme for the Adults’ Integrated Fund in 2021/22. 
 

 

2. Integrated Fund 2021/22 
 
2.1  This latest finance report provides the Adults’ Commissioning Committee (ACC) with 

the forecast position of the adults’ element of the Integrated Fund for the financial year 
(2021/22).  The appendices normally contain further detail, but it should be noted, due 
to the majority of contracts remaining on block for H1 and the same for H2 these 
appendices have been removed for this year as they provide detail on activity which is 
not currently being reported. This finance report is based on information up to the end 
of July 2021.  The Service and Finance Group (SFG) have scrutinised the position and 
agreed to the key messages. 

 
2.2 The forecast position for 2021/22 at July 2021 is an overspend of £4.4m, against a 

planned overspend of £3.1m for the adults’ integrated fund. There has been a net 
adverse movement in the forecast since the last report due to a further £1.9m shortfall 
in client income offset with a net £0.3m overspend on expenditure, as shown in Table 
1 below: 

 
  

Page 103



 

  

  
  
  
  

  
  
   

Table 1: 2021/22 Financial Summary 

 
 
2.2.1 Acute/other underspends - The CCG has been mandated by NHSE to maintain set 

budget values that have been calculated nationally until the end of September 2021. 
This agreement has now been extended into the second half of the year (H2) as 
expected and means block contracts will remain in place until March 2022. All 
independent sector providers are exempt from these block arrangements and have 
returned to their normal contract arrangements of activity-based payments. 

 
2.2.2 Customer & Client Receipts - £1.9m - A recent review by local authority colleagues 

has estimated that the impact on residential income seen in 2020/21 will continue in 
2021/22 resulting in an increased financial pressure for 2021/22 to the adults’ fund.  
This was highlighted in the previous report as the likely position and has now been 
included in the forecast.  

 
2.2.3 Community Equipment Store (CES) - £0.3m - The CES service is expected to 

overspend predominantly due to 3 staff vacancies currently being filled by agency 
workers and agency back fill for a technician. There is also a £50k overspend on 
telecare as the service was recommenced with no budget a couple of years ago. It is 
also worth noting there has been a rise in equipment costs due to increased world 
shipping and raw materials costs that is out of local control.  Where possible, eligible 
costs are moved to DFG capital. 

 
2.2.4 Continuing Health Care and Funded Nursing Care - £0.4m underspend – This has 

moved adversely since the last report by £0.5m due to a change in the forecast 

Page 104



 

  

  
  
  
  

  
  
   

assumptions.  Previously, the year to date underspend was forecast to continue at the 
same rate for the remainder of the year, but this has now been revised and the forecast 
for H2 is assumed to be on plan.  This is deemed to be a more prudent approach in 
view of the tapering of Hospital Discharge Programme funding. 

 
2.2.5 Adult Social Care (ASC) - Although ASC is forecast to breakeven the provider is 

projecting a £1.9m overspend by the end of 2021/22. Previously we have employed a 
50/50 risk share with the provider on overspends. Therefore the position could worsen 
by another £1.0m if this is transacted in the future. 

 
2.3 Mitigations –  

 There will be likely £0.5m underspend on the independent sector provider 
(Oaklands) and whilst this is currently being forecast as breakeven in line with 
the initial Greater Manchester guidance, the overall ICS forecast underspend 
means that local underspends can be retained instead of being ringfenced for 
overspending localities. 

 The forecast on client income reduction is expected to be a worst case 
scenario, and improvements are expected before the end of the year 

 There is likely to be further slippage on committed developments. 
 
2.4 These mitigations mean there is reasonable assurance that the opening deficit position 

of £3.1m for the adults’ fund is deliverable. 
 
 

3. Salford Savings Programme 
 
3.1 The Salford Savings Programme has been reinvigorated (formerly Best Value 

Programme) where the programme looks to provide a consistent overarching view of 
commissioning projects that are estimated to have a financial benefit whether cash 
releasing, cost avoidance or growth reduction. An overall monitoring schedule has 
been produced that aligns back to the locality integrated financial plan and an individual 
pro-forma created where each scheme has an overview and the current position 
reported. There are monthly meetings with commissioner leads across the locality for 
adults, children’s and primary care as well as corporate functions, which is a forum for 
discussion and debate to ensure we are consistent in the treatment of schemes and 
how some specific projects interact with each other. 

 
3.2 At budget setting, £0.5m was identified as savings as part of the market shaping for 

ASC. £0.3m was estimated to be delivered due to non-real living wage inflation 
expected to be lower than the planned £0.5m estimate within the 2021/22 plan.  
However, with the announcement of a revised pay award of 3% up from 1% this may 
now not be delivered. 

 
3.3 In partnership with commissioners, SRFT as the provider of ASC is undertaking a 

savings programme to reduce the systems costs to meet the proposed plan for 
2021/22. Progress has been made on identifying schemes to deliver savings and table 
2 highlights the schemes identified to date and expected achievement in financial year 
taken from SRFT’s e-HUB. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 105



 

  

  
  
  
  

  
  
   

Table 2: ASC Saving Schemes e-HUB 

                 
 
3.4 Other schemes within adults are linked to mental health: 
 

 An investment in Greater Manchester Mental Health (GMMH) which looks to 
reduce the amount of long-term out of locality rehabilitation placements (£0.3m). 
 

 A scheme linked to a negotiation of an improved block contract price for adult 
autism assessments with AXIA reducing the current (spot contract) price from 
£1,500 to a block contract price of £1,000.  Based on contracting for 200 
assessments this will see £0.1m cost avoidance/saving.   
            

            

4. Strategy and Investments 
 
4.1 An amount of £9.8m was set to be invested in 2021/22 within Adults’ services on new 

or enhanced services across several areas at the start of 2021/22, below is an update 
on the remaining investments at July 2021 as shown in table 3 below. 

 
4.2 Investments of £2.4m have already been transferred into new or enhanced services at 

July 2012. A further £6.8m is forecast to be transacted by the end of March 2022. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 106



 

  

  
  
  
  

  
  
   

 
Table 3: Adults’ Investment Fund Summary 2021/22 

 

 
 
4.3 Mental Health Investment Standard (MHIS) - Several schemes haven’t materialised 

and has resulted in slippage in most of the schemes for H1. However in order for the 
standard to be achieved a further £0.5m of new schemes needs to be identified in 
order for the CCG to meet its target for 2021/22, the remaining slippage has been 
utilised to offset the overall adults’ pressure for 2021/22. 

 
4.3 Mayoral Priorities - Most of these are set to be transacted in August to the adult social 

care (ASC) provider. The contingency of £0.4m will remain with commissioners and 
will be utilised to offset any pressure for 2021/22 for ASC. 

 
4.4 Other - Most of these investments are set to be transacted in H2 with slippage from H1 

utilised to offset the overall pressure with the adults’ fund for 2021/22.  
 
 

Page 107



 

  

  
  
  
  

  
  
   

 
 

5. Risks 
 
5.1 The opening full year plan for the Integrated Fund was based on the assumption that 

H2 allocations would approximate those confirmed for H1.  However, the CCG is aware 
that the likely headline reduction in H2 allocations is approximately 3%, but these have 
yet to be confirmed. 

 
5.2 Winter pressures will likely result in additional adult social care and acute expenditure. 
 
5.3 The additional resource from the Hospital Discharge Programme is will approximate 

between £2m - £2.5m by the end of October.  No further announcements have been 
made regarding continuation of this funding and this is likely to be a further pressure 
in November to March as expenditure is not tapering in line with funding reductions. 

 
 

6. Recommendations 
 
6.1 The Adults’ Commissioning Committee (ACC) is asked to: 
 

 Note the financial position for 2021/22 

 Note the savings programme for 2021/22 to deliver a balanced plan 

 The risks outlined in section 5 above. 
 
 
David Warhurst 
Interim Chief Financial Officer, Salford CCG 
 
 
 

Page 108



 
  
 

1 
 

Adult Commissioning Committee 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO 8 

 
Item for Decision/Assurance/Information (Please underline and bold)   

 
DATE OF MEETING 14 JULY 2021 
 

Report of: 

 
Karen Proctor/Charlotte Ramsden 

Date of Paper: 
 

27th August  2021 

Subject: 

 
Adult Commissioning Report 

In case of query  
Please contact: 

 

Judd Skelton Judd.Skelton@salford.gov.uk  
Harry Golby harry.golby@nhs.net  

Purpose of Paper: 
 

This paper provides an overview of a number of key or emerging areas of 

commissioning and provision relating to adult health and care to ensure Adult 
Commissioning Committee are kept abreast of developments and progress. 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

Page 109

Agenda Item 8

mailto:Judd.Skelton@salford.gov.uk
mailto:harry.golby@nhs.net


 
  
 

2 
 

Further explanatory information required 

 
 
HOW WILL THIS BENEFIT THE 

HEALTH AND WELL BEING OF 
SALFORD RESIDENTS OR THE 

CLINICAL COMMISSIONING 
GROUP? 

 

This paper provides an overview of a 
number of key or emerging areas of 

commissioning and provision relating to 
adult health and care to ensure Adult 

Commissioning Committee are kept abreast 
of developments and progress. 

 

WHAT RISKS MAY ARISE AS A 
RESULT OF THIS PAPER?  HOW 

CAN THEY BE MITIGATED? 
  

N/A 

 

WHAT EQUALITY-RELATED 
RISKS MAY ARISE AS A RESULT 
OF THIS PAPER?  HOW WILL 

THESE BE MITIGATED? 
 

N/A 

 

DOES THIS PAPER HELP 
ADDRESS ANY EXISTING HIGH 
OR EXTREME RISKS FACING 

THE ORGANISATION?  IF SO 
WHAT ARE THEY AND HOW 

DOES THIS PAPER REDUCE 
THEM? 

 

N/A 

 

PLEASE DESCRIBE ANY 
POSSIBLE CONFLICTS OF 

INTEREST ASSOCIATED WITH 
THIS PAPER. 
 

N/A 

 

PLEASE IDENTIFY ANY 
CURRENT SERVICES OR ROLES 

THAT MAY BE AFFECTED BY 
ISSUES WITHIN THIS PAPER: 
 

N/A 

Footnote: 
 
Members of – Adults’ Commissioning Committee will read all papers thoroughly.  Once 

papers are distributed no amendments are possible.  

Page 110



 
   

 

 

3 
 

Document Development 

 

Process Yes No 
Not 

Applicable 

Comments and Date 
(i.e. presentation, verbal, 

actual report) 
Outcome 

Public Engagement 

(Please detail the method  ie survey, 
event, consultation) 

  X   

Clinical Engagement 

(Please detail the method  ie survey, 
event, consultation) 

  X   

Has ‘due regard’ been given to Equality 

Analysis (EA) of any adverse impacts? 
(Please detail outcomes, including risks 
and how these will be managed)  

  X   

Legal Advice Sought   X   

Presented to any other groups or 
committees, including Partnership Groups 

(Please specify in comments) 

  X   

 
Note: Please ensure that it is clear in the comments and date column how and when particular stakeholders were involved in this work 

and ensure there is clarity in the outcome column showing what the key message or decision was from that group and whether 

amendments were requested about a particular part of the work.

P
age 111



 

4 
 

 

 
Adult Commissioning Report 

 
1. 0 Executive Summary 

   

 
This report provides an overview of a number of key or emerging areas of commissioning 
and provision relating to adult health and care to ensure Adult Commissioning Committee 
are kept abreast of developments. 
 
Items in this month’s report include: 
 

 Mental Health Supported Accommodation Commissioning Review  

 Public Health England Prevention and Promotion Fund for Better Mental Health  

 Month of Hope 
 Information and Advice Review Update 

 Post (Long) Covid 

 Procurement for Direct Access Diagnostics 

 Effective Use of Resources Service 

 Weight Management Services 
 

 
2.0 Mental Health Supported Accommodation Commissioning Review  

 
The commissioning review of mental health supported accommodation (contracts held by 
SRFT) is a large-scale piece of work with multiple complexities. To ensure that the work 
remained manageable, particularly throughout a period of pandemic, three phases were 
developed:  
 

 Phase 1: Existing current provision. The aim of this phase was to review the current 
existing provision to identify the following:  

o If the provision is meeting the needs of people currently using supported 
accommodation 

o To inform any required changes to the specification  
o To support decisions relating to a contract extension or tender process  
o To identify any ‘quick wins’ which could offer better support to people 

currently in the supported accommodation network and to identify 
programmes of best value or invest to save.  

The purpose of phase 1 was to secure a stable base for supported accommodation 
provision, ensuring that our core provision is meeting need and aligned to the wider 
strategic approach.  
 

 Phase 2: pathway flow (including outreach, monitoring / review, and onward 
provision). This phase is outlined to build on the stable foundation provided in phase 
1, identifying opportunities to develop the provision to continue to meet need and to 
support the flow of people within the supported accommodation pathway. It is 

Page 112



 

5 
 

envisaged that as phase 2 progresses, we are likely to see some further 
opportunities to develop the provision outlined in phase 1.  
 

 Phase 3: Out of Area Supported Accommodation. This phase will focus on the needs 
of people currently supported out of area, with a view to identifying key cohorts who 
could be supported differently, supporting people back to the Salford locality and 
linking with the rehab step down pathway to support the flow of people moving 
through the system. It is anticipated that as phase 3 progresses, there will be 

opportunities to further develop the opportunities identified in phases 1 and 2.  

The approach taken with the review will see progress in a non-linear manner i.e. the 
recommendations for phase 2 may require additional changes to the outcomes of phase 1 
and similar for phase 3.  
 
Regarding Phase 1, the review has found the currently commissioned supported 
accommodation to be meeting the needs of the people currently using the service and of 
good quality / value for money.  
 
Within the provision in scope for Phase 1 an opportunity was identified  earlier in the year to 
pilot a 24/7, double staffed supported accommodation service at Gore Avenue over a 12 
month period. This approach will provide support to people with higher levels of complexity 
than those currently supported in Salford’s Supported Accommodation Alliance. This is 
anticipated to see people currently placed in out of area supported accommodation and 
people stepping down from inpatient or rehab care being supported in the Gore Avenue 
setting, with a clear move on plan towards greater independent living opportunities. This is 
thought that this approach will provide enhanced outcomes and greater oversight of quality, 
in addition to savings in the system. The extension will enable the findings from the pilot  to 
inform the future picture of supported accommodation provision. 
 
The extension will allow  time for completion of the phase 2 and phase 3 reviews, (scheduled 
for completion in late Autumn) in addition to learning from the Gore Avenue pilot, with a view 
to informing the future specification development and subsequent tender of the phase 1 
provision.  
 

3.0  Public Health England Prevention and Promotion Fund for Better Mental Health  

 

On 27 March 2021 the Department of Health and Social Care announced the COVID-19 
Mental Health and Wellbeing Recovery Action Plan for 2021 to 2022 to mitigate and respond 
to the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on mental health. As part of this Plan, £15 million 
has been allocated to preventing mental ill health and promoting good mental health in the 
most deprived upper tier local authorities in England.  
 
Salford has been allocated £334.210 of this fund and we have worked with existing, contracted 
VCSE providers to provide a varied offer to the following priority groups which enhances the 
current service offer and builds on existing provision. 
 
Priority groups 
 

 Young People 16 - 25 

 BAME Communities 

Page 113



 

6 
 

 Older people 

 Orthodox Jewish Communities 

 New Parents 

The following projects will be delivered 
 
Chalk to Talk  

 A touring artist will work with small BAME organisations and communities to take over 
walls, pavements, decorating areas using chalk and other non-permanent makers with 
words of hope, support and inspiration alongside imagery and cultural pattern in a 
tapestry of language. 

 This will be launched on World Suicide Prevention Day (September 10th). 
 
Beyond Programme 

 Mental health support to adults working with housing issues, loss, money worries, 
isolation etc.   

 Focused interventions for older people will also be developed.  

 Face to face mental health outreach sessions 

 Therapeutic art and craft sessions delivered in community venues.  

 Mental health liaison affording access to other mental health services as well as group 

support for older people. 

42nd Street - Inclusive, accessible mental health services for young people.  

 Choice of therapeutic modality, including counselling, therapy, psycho-social support, 
group work and creative work 

 Online/digital therapeutic offer to vulnerable and isolated young people 
 Full integration into 42nd Street’s current pathways and those of current health, social 

care and education partners at local and national levels and the i-Thrive framework. 

Six Degrees and Orthodox Jewish Community Work 

 Art Therapy for New Mums – recovering from Covid19.     

 Computerised CBT/ E-Therapy  

 Mindfulness - Face to face Mindfulness courses for those experiencing Long Covid.  

 16-25 age group - Take Control Courses - helping students understand their 
experiences, develop problem solving techniques which improves resilience and 
assists in reducing stigma.  

 Keren - Focus on girls who have chosen different paths from their parents.  Community 
mentors will develop pathways into statutory services, to upskill volunteers in problem 
solving and mindfulness techniques, and to introduce them to the Take Control 

programme.  

Gaddum - Young People Therapy Support 

 Young people (16-25) therapy specifically for any YP who may have experienced 
bereavement or significant trauma during lockdown  

 Trauma informed approaches with the young person and whole family  

 Face to face and virtual sessions. 

 Group sessions to create peer to peer support  
 Priority service for young adult carers (16-15) who have experienced significant trauma 

or loss during lockdown 

Page 114



 

7 
 

Home start 

 Volunteer-led support to help prevent crisis and family breakdown focusing on 
attachment & bonding, mental Health and accessing appropriate services.  

 Home-start and Dad’s Matters will offer enhanced and targeted support for new 
parents/families, identifying, engaging and support parents who may have been 
adversely affected by COVID and during lockdowns have experienced increased 
difficulties. 

 
A full evaluation of each of the above projects will be completed. Funding is allocated by the 
Department of Health and Social Care for 2021/22. There will be no financial liability for SCC.  
 

4.0   Month Of Hope 

 
The ‘Month of Hope’ runs from 10th September (World Suicide Prevention Day) – 10th 
October (World Mental Health Day) each year. Localities across Greater Manchester plan a 
series of activities, events and communications to share messages of hope to support 
suicide prevention and promote mental wellbeing. This year, the following activities are 
planned in Salford.  
 
Speak Their Name Quilt:  Throughout lockdown, people bereaved by suicide joined an 
online community to create a quilt in memory of those lost to suicide in Greater Manchester. 
The quilt is made of 54 unique squares, each representing a loved one. The quilt will be on 
display at The Lowry in Salford between 10th -26th September as part of the People’s 
Gallery.   
 
Remembrance Vigil:  The annual remembrance vigil, run by Start in Salford’s Reach Out 

programme, supported by Salford CCG is planned for the evening of the 10th September. 
The vigil offers a time for collective remembrance of those lost to suicide. The ‘Pause the 
City’ procession will start at Brunswick House, 62 Broad Street, Salford M6 5BZ at 6pm, with 
the vigil taking place from 7pm at Salford Museum Art Gallery lawn (M4 5WU).  
 
Words of Hope:  Supported by GM Health and Social Care Partnership, the Words of Hope 

event runs online via Facebook. Poems of hope will be shared at the online event taking 
place between 6.30pm-8.30pm on Thursday 23rd September. The event will be recorded and 
shared for the general public via: https://m.facebook.com/gmwordsofhopepoetry/  
 
Walk of Hope:  Salford Community Leisure will be rebranding their Monton Green Health 

Walk as a Walk of Hope on Sunday 3rd October, 10-11am. This will provide a space to walk 
and talk, using time outdoors to promote positive mental wellbeing. Information on mental 
health and suicide prevention will be available. The walk will start at 10am at Monton Green. 
Further information can be found here: wellbeing-walks (salfordcommunityleisure.co.uk)  
 
Chalk for Mental Health:  This will be launched on World Suicide Prevention Day 
(September 10th).  A touring artist will work with small BAME organisations and communities 
to take over walls, pavements, decorating areas using chalk and other non-permanent 
makers with words of hope, support and inspiration alongside imagery and cultural pattern in 
a tapestry of language. 
 

Page 115

https://m.facebook.com/gmwordsofhopepoetry/
https://salfordcommunityleisure.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2021/05/Salford-Wellbeing-Walks-INTERACTIVE.pdf


 

8 
 

Suicide Prevention Beer Mats:  Beer mats with information relating to suicide prevention 

and support for mental health are being shared across Salford, with elected members, 
neighborhood management and other community teams ensuring that they reach far and 
wide.  
 
Launch of Suicide Prevention Grants for 3rd Sector Organisations:  Following the 
success of the grants process in 2020/21 which resulted in a range of community grants to 
deliver suicide prevention approaches with higher risk communities, Salford CCG is pleased 
to be able to announce a further round of Suicide Prevention funding, administered via 
Salford CVS. This will consist of £10k grants for 12 month programmes of work, focused on 
suicide prevention, focused on specific communities. The grants will launch on the 10 th 
September and further details will be available via Salford CVS.  
 

5.0   Information and Advice Review Update 

 
In March 2016, Salford City Council Procurement Board approved a 3 year contract for the 
provision of a High Street and Health and Social Care Information and Advice Service -   April 
2016 to March 2019, with an option to extend for a further 12 months (1 April 2019 to 31 March 
2020) and then a further 12 months (1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021). The provider of this 
service is Salford CAB. Since the award of the original contract in 2016, there have been 3 
variations to the contract to include Mental Health, Disabled Children/Expectant Families and 
Palliative Care Provision.  Procurement Board approved a further two year contract extension 
from 1 April 2021 – 31 March 2023. It was agreed that the two year contract extension would 
include a service review to inform a new service model for a procurement exercise. 
 
An Information and Advice scoping paper has been developed to set out the details of what 
will be required to review and procure a new service in the two year extension period. 
Currently commissioners are in the review stage of the process and are on track to have the 
review completed and the findings taken through governance in December 2021. As part of 
the review commissioners have just completed a stakeholder engagement exercise. Three 
questionnaires have been developed and sent out to service users, Citizen Advice 
volunteers and wider stakeholders (professionals). We have received a great response from 
321 services users, 35 Salford CAB volunteers and 23 wider stakeholders. The feedback is 
currently being reviewed, but has been very positive. Performance data against the 
specification is currently being reviewed. Next steps include looking at areas of best practice 
and national guidance.  
 

6.0   Post (Long) COVID 

 

The National Institute for Health and Care Excellence (NICE), the Scottish Intercollegiate 
Guidelines Network (SIGN) and the Royal College of General Practitioners (RCGP) have 
defined Post (Long) COVID syndrome as: 
 
Signs and symptoms that develop during or following an infection consistent with COVID-19 
which continue for more than 12 weeks and are not explained by an alternative diagnosis. The 
condition usually presents with clusters of symptoms, often overlapping, which may change 
over time and can affect any system within the body. Many people with Post-COVID syndrome 
can also experience generalised pain, fatigue, persisting high temperature and psychiatric 
problems. 

Page 116



 

9 
 

 
Post-COVID-19 syndrome may be considered before 12 weeks while the possibility of an 
alternative underlying disease is also being assessed. 
 
Many people experiencing ongoing health effects following a COVID-19 infection manage   
their condition independently at home while acutely infected. It is also recognised that not all 
patients seriously impacted in the longer term were hospitalised or had a positive SARS-CoV-
2 test.  The number of patients who need post-COVID syndrome management focusing on 
recovery and rehabilitation is likely to grow as infection rates, particularly from new variants, 
continue to rise.  There is also increasing evidence that COVID-19 has a disproportionate 
impact on those in deprived populations and people in black and ethnic minority groups and 
exacerbates existing health inequalities.   
 
Guidance advises that there is a four-tier structure to treat patients suffering with post-COVID: 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
At the tier 1 stage, patients are advised to self-manage (by their GP where appropriate), who 
will also signpost the patient for access to the ‘Your COVID’ recovery website.  Tier 2 involves 
patients being seen in general practice to have their diagnosis confirmed, be provided with 
support and informed of what other services are available to manage their condition with a 
potential for referral to the assessment clinic.  Tier 3 incorporates the assessment clinic with 
any referral into specialist services required whilst tier 4 is for tertiary referrals for the 
management of specific conditions, i.e. respiratory or chronic fatigue. 
 
In Salford, a community based Post-Acute COVID Assessment Clinic with agreed pathways 
was established in February for patients with persisting COVID symptoms, which are 
significantly impacting their ability to function in day to day life and who have not responded 
to initial management. The clinic is a Multi-disciplinary Team) MDT assessment clinic, which 
will arrange any further treatment, care or support required for the patient.  Referrals are 
defined by inclusion/exclusion criteria; information for this has been communicated to 
practices via the GP bulletin. 
 
The clinic is held two days a week, staffed by two local GPs and is currently seeing around 18 
patients per week for assessment.  The data for the clinic is being analysed to determine the 
conclusions for the patients and what impact the assessment clinic has had but is not yet 

Page 117



 

10 
 

available as not all patients have had their outcomes recorded.  To date, there has been 282 
GP referrals from 34 practices and 45 internal SRFT referrals, totalling 327 (February to July 
’21).    Currently, the waiting time for the assessment clinic is around 4 weeks.  Over half of 
patients following the assessment process go on to be seen in a Post-COVID therapy 
rehabilitation clinic.  
 
Salford is one of the first sites in the country to launch the COVID-19 Yorkshire Rehabilitation 
Scale (C19-YRS) apps.  This is an outcome measure to capture persistent symptoms of Post-
COVID and is widely used within the assessment clinic. 
 
Whilst currently the demand for treating children with Post COVID is very low, there is a clinic 
which has been set up at Manchester Foundation Trust that is accepting referrals from across 
Greater Manchester. 
 
NHS England published the NHS Plan for Post-COVID on the 15th June which outlined 10 key 
next steps for Post-COVID Support which will be underpinned by an additional £100 million 
funding nationally.  £30m will be given to general practice for them to engage in an enhanced 
service to increase their knowledge on identifying, assessing and supporting patients with 
Post-COVID, accurately coding patients and reducing inequity of access to help raise 
awareness of support.  The remaining £70m will expand Post-COVID treatment and 
rehabilitation within secondary care. 
 
Also recently announced, is NIHR funding of £19.6m awarded to projects across the UK to 
examine the causes of Post-COVID, trial drugs to tackle it and investigate symptoms such as 
breathlessness and brain fog that have come synonymous with the condition.  This will support 
people experiencing Post-COVID to benefit from a comprehensive package of funded 
research to help improve understanding of the condition from diagnosis through to 
rehabilitation and treatment. 
 
These studies will also evaluate health services, such as the assessment clinics and explore 
ways that patients can monitor the condition to optimise their recovery and return to work. 
 
Communications will continue to be published to update GPs regarding the treatment of 
patients suffering with Post-COVID syndrome, a communication regarding the use of the C19-
YRS app is being produced and will be published nationally.  Development work linked to the 
NHS plan for Post-COVID is also on-going.  
 

7.0   Procurement for Direct Access Diagnostics 

 

Earlier this year several commissioners across Greater Manchester (Oldham, Bury, 
Manchester, Heywood, Middleton and Rochdale, Salford, Stockport, Tameside & Glossop 
and Trafford) participated in a procurement process to tender for Direct Access Diagnostics  
Services; for Salford, these included age-related hearing loss (adult hearing services) and 
direct access non-obstetric ultrasound (NOUS).  
 
The decision to re-tender these services was based on feedback received from patients, 
referrers, and existing providers at market engagement events. The vision for these services 
is for patients to receive high quality, efficient and equitable services delivered closer to 
home, or at a more convenient location within accessible transport routes, with short waiting 

Page 118



 

11 
 

times and high responsiveness to the needs of local communities, free at the point of 
access. 
   
Adult Hearing Services 

 To date, Any Qualified Provider (AQP) contracts offered the GM population the 
choice of ten adult hearing providers; these contracts had been extended until 30th 
September 2021. The aim of the re-procurement was to provide a comprehensive 
service for adults experiencing hearing and communication difficulties who feel they 
might benefit from hearing assessment and rehabilitation including the option of 
trying hearing aids with aftercare and support.  

 
Direct Access NOUS 

 To date, AQP contracts offered the GM population the choice of thirteen NOUS 
providers; these contracts had also been extended until 30th September 2021. This 
re-procurement sought to rationalise the supply base, appointing only a discrete 
number of Providers (2 per area), selected based on quality and identified as the 
most capable in terms of delivering the highest quality service, at the national tariff. 
This approach intends to support commercial viability of NOUS provision over the 
contract term. 

 
The procurement process has now concluded, and we can now share the outcome of the 
procurement and the successful providers who have been awarded a contract. Contracts are 
for a duration of up to 3 years, from 1st October 2021 until 30th September 2024 with the 
possibility of one extension of up to 2 years.  The contracts are zero value contracts (i.e. no 
committed value) and the CCG has approved them in line with the delegation agreement 
underpinning the integrated commissioning arrangement. 
 
Adult Hearing Services 

 The 8 adult hearing providers are Beacon Medical Services Group, Complete Price 
Eyewear Ltd (The Outside Clinic), Manchester University NHS Foundation Trust, 
Mediscan Diagnostics Services Ltd, Salford Royal Foundation Trust, Scrivens Ltd, 
Specsavers Hearcare Group Ltd and Tameside and Glossop Integrated Care NHS 
Foundation Trust. 

 
Direct Access NOUS 

 For Salford the new NOUS providers are Yorkshire Health Solutions and 
Physiological Measurement; both have a successful track record of provision of 
diagnostic healthcare services for the NHS in other areas of the country. Stockport 
also have a provider called Beacon, and this will be available to Salford patients (but 
only at Stockport locations).   

 
The CCG is actively involved in the service mobilisation phase with colleagues from across 
Greater Manchester; current priorities include confirming service locations, staffing levels, 
capacity, training, service protocols and communications to primary care colleagues and the 
public. Before 30th September 2021, there will be a managed process to ensure the GP 
referral system is updated to reflect the changes in providers, and to minimise the impact on 
service users and referrers for these services. 
 
Adult Commissioning Committee is asked to note the outcome of procurement process and 
the planned service mobilisation. 

Page 119



 

12 
 

8.0 Effective Use of Resources  

 
The NHS is under a statutory duty ‘to promote comprehensive healthcare within the 
resources available’. It is not an absolute obligation to provide every treatment that a patient, 
or group of patients, may demand. The NHS is obliged to consider the resources available to 
it and the competing demands on those resources. The precise allocation of resources and 
the process for prioritising the allocation of those resources is a matter of judgement.  
 
In April 2013 the Greater Manchester (GM) Effective Use of Resources (EUR) service was 
established to support the delivery of this statutory duty, commissioned by all 10 GM CCGs, 
and a GM EUR Operational policy has been implemented to facilitate and support making 
these judgements at a named patient level by identifying individuals who should receive care 
on the NHS where their request is an exception to current commissioning arrangements. 
 
Each financial year the GM EUR service produces a report to provide details of the ongoing 
GM EUR treatment policy development work programme and the number of funding 
requests received and managed by the GM EUR service. A summary of the key points from 
the 20/21 report is set out below. 
 
Salford currently has 59 Effective Use of Resources policies (plus an Assisted Conception 
Policy template) that have been approved; they are listed in Appendix 1 and include 5 new 
policies developed in 20/21:   

 Rhinosinusitis / Rhinitis / Sinusitis  

 Asymptomatic Gallstones 

 D&C and Hysterectomy for Heavy Menstrual Bleeding 

 Augmentative and Alternative Communication (AAC) Aids  

 Cough Assist (Mechanical Insufflation and Exsufflation (MI-E) 
 
Also, during 2020/21, the following existing GM EUR policies were reviewed in line with an 
agreed review programme: 

 Operational policy 

 Assisted Conception template 

 Low back pain (with or without sciatica) 

 Facet joint injections 

 Arthroscopic sub-acromial decompression for shoulder impingement 
 Knee arthroscopy 

 Surgical repair of hernias 

 Surgical management of ankyloglossia (tongue tie) 

 Surgical correction of adult strabismus (squint) 

 Bunion surgery 

 Asymptomatic gallstones 
 Dilatation and curettage (D&C); and hysterectomy for heavy menstrual bleeding 

 
EUR policy development and review are overseen by the GM EUR Steering Group (GM 
EUR SG) on behalf of the GM CCGs; this is a clinically led group with stakeholder 
engagement and includes clinical representation from each CCG.  
 
Adult Commissioning Committee last received a full report of CCG’s Effective Use of 
Resources programme in February 2020, at which, it supported the recommendation that 

Page 120



 

13 
 

Salford’s decisions for approval of Effective Use of Resources policies would be delegated to 
the CCG’s Director of Commissioning (or jointly by the Director of Commissioning and 
Director of Finance where the financial impact is expected to be above £20k). Once 
approved, the GM EUR treatment policies are implemented with immediate effect. The new 
policies along with the reviewed policies, have been implemented without issues or 
controversy; none of the new policies have had a financial impact of more than £20k.   
 
The significant impact that COVID-19 had on the delivery of NHS services has 
correspondingly impacted on the number of funding requests received by the GM EUR 
service; in 2021 the service received 45% less funding requests than received in 19/20. In 
Salford, funding requests fell by 67% (206 less funding requests); however, nearly half of 
this reduction (95 funding requests) is due to the Oaklands implementing the Blueteq system 
mid-year in 19/20 which allows the Consultant to confirm a patient meets policy criteria 
during their appointment for certain procedures without the need to submit a funding request.  
 
Salford’s rate of funding requests per 1,000 population in 20/21 was 0.38; this was the 
lowest rate in GM, the GM average was 0.81 per 1,000 population. Approval of funding 
requests in Salford has remained fairly static with around 60% of funding requests approved 
each year. 
 
A lower rate of funding requests does not equate to poorer access to care, in fact, this can 
be viewed positively. Salford CCG has worked with system partners to ensure systems and 
pathways are in place for clinicians to make clinical decisions, in line with policies, without 
unnecessary bureaucracy of submitting funding requests (the Blueteq system above is an 
example of this). Not all localities have such systems in place and in addition some of those 
CCG’s who have high rates of funding requests receive a comparatively large number of 
requests for treatment where there isn’t a commissioned care pathway in the locality i.e. 
community based neurological physiotherapy. 
 
The GM EUR service, supported by the Transformation Unit, has commenced a review of 
the current operating model with a view to informing opportunities for improvements across 
the GM system as the GM Integrated Care System develops during 2022. Salford CCG is 
represented in the workshops that will inform the development of the future model. 
 
Adult Commissioning Committee is asked to note the key points from the 20/21 GM EUR 
service report.  
 

9.0 Weight Management Services  

 
In recent months there have been several national developments relating to adult weight 
management. 
 
A new national Weight Management Enhanced Service has been offered to all GP practices 
in 2021/22.  The aim of this enhanced service is to support practices to implement a 
proactive approach to the identification of people living with obesity and to engage with those 
individuals who are ready to make behavioural changes to manage their weight.  There are 
two components to the specification.  Component 1 relates to developing a supportive 
environment and involves education and training of practice staff, normalising conversations 
about weight and maintaining the practice’s adult obesity register.  As part of component 2 
practices will receive income for each appropriate referral to an appropriate weight 

Page 121



 

14 
 

management or diabetes prevention programme.  For the purposes of this enhanced service 
obesity is defined as a BMI ≥ 30 or, due to health inequalities, ≥ 27.5 for those of Black, 
Asian and other minority ethnic groups. 
 
The enhanced service has the potential to result in an additional 8,800 referrals from Salford 
GP practices (although in reality some of these people will already be engaged in a weight 
management programme and others will not be ready to engage).  Salford’s Integrated 
Community Based Care Group has met to consider the implications for those services that 
will receive these referrals.  There are a range of service offers at Tier 2 and Tier 3 of the 
pathway, some virtual and some face-to-face, commissioned by NHS and Public Health 
colleagues at Salford, Greater Manchester and national levels.  Some of these services have 
demand and capacity issues that have been exacerbated by the pandemic, resulting in 
significant waiting lists.  The options for referrers are being mapped so that they can be 
shared with practices.   
 
Ahead of the upcoming Comprehensive Spending Review (CSR) for 22/23 onwards, 
NHSE&I is asking every Integrated Care System (ICS) to complete a proposal for the 
development and expansion of specialist weight management services within their system. 
The objective of this exercise is to ascertain the priority areas from each of the systems in 
order to inform future policy and decision making on funding.   
 
As part of the process, surveys have been sent to commissioners and providers of Tier 3 
(non-surgical specialist weight management) and Tier 4 (bariatric surgery) services; 
responses will then inform the mapping of existing services/gaps, current challenges and 
opportunities for pathway development and transformation. 
 
It is intended that proposals can then be developed, informed by this mapping as well as 
local population needs, to outline system plans for improving, developing, or expanding local 
services over the next three to four years, with a particular focus on: 

 What changes to the service or pathway would deliver the greatest benefit? 

 What would be the benefits of this transformation? 

 What one-off and recurring costs would be incurred to deliver this and the lead-in 
time for implementation? 

 
In addition, NHS Regions have been allocated non-recurrent funding for 21/22 to support the 
recovery of Tier 3 and 4 services. Where an ICS has the ability to expand capacity in year, a 
proposal can be submitted to use the funding to increase activity through existing services. 
For the North West region this funding equates to £680k and when allocated by weighted 
population equates to £253k for Greater Manchester (GM).  Timescales for this project have 
been tight, the deadline for submission for both parts is the 31st August 2021; although 
proposals can be further refined in September.   
 
As the lead commissioner for the current GM Tier 4 service at Salford Royal and the Tier 3 
service provided by MoreLife covering 5 of the 10 GM localities, Salford CCG is taking a lead 
role in pulling together and submitting proposals for both parts for GM; working with 
commissioner and provider colleagues from across the system to do so.   
 
At the time of writing the proposals are being developed.  It is likely a small amount of the 
investment will be used for project management and pathway development with the 

Page 122



 

15 
 

remainder being allocated equally to Tier 4 and Tier 3 providers to enable an increased 
number of patients to be treated in the second half of this financial year. 
 
Adult Commissioning Committee is asked to note: 

 Work being undertaken in Salford to map the local weight management and diabetes 
prevention pathways in response to the national enhanced service, and 

 Work being led by Salford CCG to submit a proposal for expansion of Tier 3 and Tier 
4 weight management services across Greater Manchester. 

 

10.0 Recommendations 

 
Adult Commissioning Committee is asked to note and discuss this overview of a number of 
key or emerging areas of commissioning and provision relating to adult health and care. 
 
Judd Skelton, Assistant Director - Integrated Commissioning 
Harry Golby, Deputy Director of Commissioning 
  

Page 123



 

16 
 

Appendix 1: NHS Salford CCG EUR Policies as at August 2021 

 

1.  Aesthetic Surgery (Other)  
31.  Hyaluronic Acid Injections for 
Osteoarthritis  

2.  Back Pain (Treatment for low back pain with 
or without sciatica)  

32.  Hyperhidrosis  

3.  Body Contouring  33.  Knee Arthroscopy  

4.  Breast Surgery (Aesthetic)  34.  Knee Replacement  

5.  Bunion (Hallux Valgus) Surgery  35.  Labiaplasty  

6.  Caesarean Section  36.  Laser Eye Surgery  

7.  Carpal Tunnel Syndrome (Surgical 
Interventions for)  

37.  Lycra Body Suits  

8.  Cataract Surgery  
38.  MRI scanning (Wide bore, open and 
open upright)  

9.  Circumcision (Surgical procedures on the 
prepuce)  

39.  Orthoses, bespoke orthoses & 24-hour 
posture management  

10.  Communication Aids  
40.  Pelvic Vein Embolisation in the 
management of varicose veins  

11.  Complementary and Alternative Therapies  41.  Pinnaplasty  

12.  Continuous Glucose Monitoring (Real-Time)  
42.  Rhinoplasty / Septoplasty / Septo-
Rhinoplasty  

13.  Cough Assist   43.  Rhinosinusitis / Rhinitis / Sinusitis  

14.  Dermatochalasis (Correction of)  
44.  Sacroneuromodulation for Urinary 
Retention and Constipation  

15.  D&C and Hysterectomy for heavy menstrual 
bleeding  

45.  Scarring (Surgical revision of)  

16.  Drainage of the middle ear, Surgical (with or 
without the insertion of grommets)  

46.  Shoulder Impingement  

17.  Dupuytren’s Contracture  47.  Skin Lesions (Common Benign)  

18.  Electrolysis and Laser Hair Removal For 
Hirsutism  

48.  Skin Resurfacing Techniques  

19.  Endoscopic Thoracic Sympathectomy (ETS) 
for Facial Blushing  

49.  Snoring (Invasive treatments for)  

20.  Experimental and Unproven Treatments  50.  Spinal procedures (Out of contract)  

21.  Eyelid Lesions (Removal of Common 
Benign)  

51.  Split / Torn Ear Lobes (Repair of)  

22.  Facet Joint Injections  52.  Strabismus (squint surgery)    

23.  Functional Electronic Stimulation (FES) for 
Foot Drop  

53.  Tattoo Removal  

24.  Gallstones (Asymptomatic)  54.  Tongue Tie  

25.  Ganglion Cyst Removal  55.  Tonsillectomy  

26.  Haemorrhoids and anal skin tags (Surgical 
management (including banding) of)  

56.  Trigger Finger (Surgical Correction of)  

27.  Hair Replacement Technologies  
57.  Trophic Electrical Stimulation (TES) 
for Facial Palsy  

Page 124



 

17 
 

28.  Headache Disorders  
58.  Ultrasound and Pulsed 
Electromagnetic Systems (PES) for bone 
healing  

29.  Hernia Repair   59.  Varicose Veins 

30.  Hip Replacement   

 
Details can be found at Effective use of resources :: Salford CCG 
 
 

Page 125

https://www.salfordccg.nhs.uk/about-us/how-we-do-things/effective-use-resources


This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Draft Minutes of the Meeting Held on 14th July 2021
	4 Age Well Specification - Jess Ta'ati
	04 - Lot 1 - Population Wide
	04 - Lot 2 - Early Intervention

	5 CURE Tobacco Addiction Service - Samantha Mansfield
	05 - CURE - Cost Benefit Analysis
	05 - App 1 CURE
	05 - App 2 CURE
	05 - App 3 CURE - NHS Long Term Plan

	6 Aspire (CIC) Contract - VAT Impact and Options - Judd Skelton
	7 Finance Report - David Warhurst
	8 Adult Commissioning Report - Harry Golby/Judd Skelton

